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The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Jefferson Parish Public School System (School System) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 is submitted herewith. This report was prepared by the School System's Business Services Division. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the School System. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and the results of operations of the School System as measured by the financial activity of its various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the School System's financial activities have been included. The CAFR is presented in three sections: (1) introduction, (2) financial, and (3) statistical. The introduction section includes this transmittal letter, the School System's organizational chart, and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund financial statements and other supplemental information, as well as the independent auditors' report on the financial statements. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The School System is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and U,S, Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of State and Local Govenanents." Information related to this single audit, including the schedule of federal awards, findings and recommendations, and independent auditors' reports on the internal control over financial reporting and on compliance with the requirements applicable to each major program and the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 are included in a separate report. THE REPORTING ENTITY The Jefferson Parish Public School System is an independent special district created for the purpose of providing elementary and secondary education to the citizens of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana. The general purpose financial statements of the School System include the accounts of all School System operations. These financial statements present the School System as the primary government. The remainder of this transmittal highlights the governance structure, the nfission, the accomplishments and initiatives, the economic conditions and outlook, and the financial activities of the School System. 



The School System has one component unit, the Jefferson Community Charter School, which is presented as a discretely presented component unit. The Jefferson Community Charter School is included in the reporting entity because it is fiscally dependent on the School System. The purpose of the Charter School is to provide an alternalive middle school for at-risk public school students in the sixth, seventh and eighth grade who have been expelled from the School System to learn appropriate behavioral and academic skills enabling them to return as functioning, responsible participants in the public middle and high schools. The School System is governed by a nine-member school board (Board) elected by the citizens. Each member is elecled to a four-year term, and the terms are concurrent. See page i for a listing of the present members of the Board along with the administrative officials who are appointed by the Board. Regular meetings are scheduled the first and third Wednesday of the month and are held in the School System's Administration Building. Special meetings are scheduled as needed and announced in compliance with public notice requirements. The Board has final control over local mailers limited only by the stale legislature, by the courts, and by the will of the people as expressed in School Board elections. Board decisions are based on a majority vote of those present. In general, the Board adopls policies, sets direction for curriculum, employs the superintendent, and oversees the operations of the School System and its schools. Besides general Board business, board members are charged with numerous statutory regulations including calling board and other school elections and canvassing the results of elections, organizing the Board, and electing its officers. The Board is also responsible for setting the ad valorem lax rate, setting salary schedules, acling as a board of appeals in personnel and student matters, confirming recommendations for texlbook adoptions, and adopting and amending the annual budget. The Board solicits and evaluates community input and support concerning school policies MISSION The School System's adopted mission is "...to provide educational programs to meet the identified needs of all students in a learning environment that stimulates academic achievement and intellectual curiosity, develops positive personal qualities and well-being, and fosters respect for individual differences." To accomplish its mission, the School System provides a full range of educational services appropriate lo grade levels ranging from pre-kindcrgarten through adulthood. These include regular and enriched academic education, special education for children with disabilities, vocational education, and special programs for those with limited English proficiency. These programs are supplemented by a wide variety of offerings in the fine arts and athletics. 
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We, in the Jefferson Parish Public School System, recognized the challenges we face as we prepare students for lhe 21st. century. The demands placed upon us as we approach the new millennium have increased. We must not only prepare our children to read, write, and do arithmetic, we must prepare them to live in a fast-changing, technologically-driven, globally competitive world. We must assist those who don't succeed academically since they will not find work as unskilled laborers as those jobs have moved overseas or have been eliminated. We must prepare our children to understand and take their places in an increasingly complex and challenging world, a world that will require them to keep on growing and changing with it. To meet this very demanding role, we have developed an academically challenging curriculum that includes programs for the gifted and talented as well as programs that prepare students for the world of work. Our high school "academies" prepare students for the world of work by coordinating these academics with real work experiences. We offer "academies" in the field of banking, travel and tourism, restaurant management, law-related careers, education, and health services. A credit union has even been established at one of the high schools where students are allowed 'to have real accounts, deposit and withdraw their own money, and/earn hands on how to deal with their finances. Our students have the opportunity to visit selected workplaces, to participate in internships their senior year, and even, in some instances, to be placed in summer jobs. We recognize that technology is critical for our students to be prepared to enter the world of work. In school year 1998/99, our school system secured a $7 million federal mathematics grant, "I Can Learn" computer labs, for middle school students. Each of our 83 schools have computers in the classrooms or computer labs which enhance the curriculum. Many &our schools utilize computer instructional programs such as Plato, Accelerated Reader, etc. All of our schools have lnternet access through the libraries and the majority of our schools are wired for Intemet access in the classrooms. We will continue to wire all classrooms through our two annual NetDays. Our schools also have E-mail communications. Our students have created web sites, participated in electronic classrooms, and communicaled via E-mail and the Internet with other students across the nation. Using digital satellite technology rerouted through our instructional access cable channel, our students at remote sites can enroll in classes such as Japanese, Spanish, Latin, and advance placement mathematics. Our school district has invested heavily in the use of advanced technology as a teaching tool. The School System's commitment to its mission is reflected in its allocation of financial resources. The 1999/2000 budget was adopted on June 2, 1999. Total expected budgeted expenditures for the General Fund are $266,533,578. Projected revenues and other financing sources for the General Fund total $267,067,655. The projected General Fund year-end fund balance for FY 1999/2000 is $11,491,055. State funding for Equalization related to the 1999/2000 budget as compared to the 1998/99 actual is projected to decrease based on the expected loss of 1,724 students. The loss of students is state-wide and in no way refiects unfairly on the Jefferson Parish Public School System. Sales taxes are projected to grow at a 2.5% rate while ad valorem taxes are projected to increase slightly. 



ACCOMPLISItMENTS AND INITIATIVES Student population (1999/2000) Number of schools Number of students transported daily Number of school buses Number of teachers Number of employees (all funds) Number of student lunches served daily Number of schools that provide breakfast Number of schools that have lunch programs Number of employee lunches served daily Number of student breakfasts served daily Annual operating budget, exclusive of debt service and capital projects Cost per pupil 

51,507 83 36,377 340 3,992 7,767 36,916 82 82 1,595 13,864 $ 267,013,723 $ 5,184 Among the noteworthy events occurring during the school year 1998/1999 were Superintendent Lagasse was one of 50 superintendents and principals chosen from the United States to join distinguished educators from England in a round table discussion at Oxford University in England The Jefferson Parish Public School System Principals of the Year for 1998-99 are as follows: Barbara Doles, Woodmere Elementary School; Jay ltarney, J. D. Meisler Middle School; Richard Augustin, Grand Isle School. Mr.Augustin was also selected as regional Principal of the Year for the high schoo division. Six principals from the Jefferson Parish Public School System have been selected as 1999 School Leadership Center Fellows by the School Leadership Center of Greater New Orleans. They are: Doltie Bailey, McDonogh 26 Elementary; Dolores Cardon, Woodland West Elementary; Joyce Duncan, Douglass Elementary; Daisy Hunter, L.W. Ruppel Elementary; Geraldine Settoon, Strehle Elementary and Palricia Zeringue, Truman Middle School. The Brown Foundation Community Service Awards Program honored the following Jefferson Parish Public Schools for their community service program. Cuillier Career Center was awarded $5,000 and Grand Isle and West Jefferson were each awarded $1,250. Bonnabel High, Grace King Itigh, Ehret lligh, lliggins High and Riverdale High schools each received $750. The teachers of the year for 1998/99 are as follows: Ann Young, third grade teacher at Ellis Elementary School, Sandra Riggs-Mason, an English and gifted resource teacher at llarris Middle School and Jean Curran, a math teacher at Riverdale ttigh School. Monica Folse, a teacher of orthopedically impaired students of Estelle Elementary School, has been named "Special Education Teacher of the Year." The Bureau of Governmental Research (BGR) has recognized two administrators. Robert Farrington, Supervisor of Child Welfare and Attendance was recognized for developing an innovative program to assist the "at risk" student. Linda Whiteside, principal at Live Oak Elementary, was recognized for her ability to turn the school negative points to positive ones, Freddie G. Landry, Safe and Drug Free Schools Coordinator, was recognized by the Drug Enforcement Administration. 



Maria Valbuena from Roosevelt Middle School has been chosen to receive the 1999 Wal-Mart Teacher of the Year Award, consisting of a $500 check. Freddi Evans, Special Education Artist/Facilitator, was the 1998 recipient of the Mazie Malveaux Very Special Arts Award which is presented annually for outstanding and dedicated service to Louisiana's students with disabilities. Ellen Rock, a teacher at Miller Wall Elementary has been honored as one of 12 teachers nation-wide who have been selected to participate in the eighth annual ScieneeGrasp program at Kalamazoo College. Cuillier Career Center is the proud recipient of a Community Partnership Grant awarded by Entergy. It was the only public school in Jefferson Parish to receive this grant. Jefferson Elementary School was one often recipients of the 1999 Tenth Annual Business Week Awards for instructional innovation - Smart Links: Schools That Use Technology For Learning Award of $1,500. As the winner of this award, Jefferson Elementary will participate at workshops/conferences throughout the U.S. The John Ehret High School Louisiana Engineering Advancement Program (L.E.A.P.)Club was awarded "Most Outstanding Senior High School L.E.A.P. Club." Mrs. Mary Stowe and Mrs. Velinda Verdin were recognized as "Most Outstanding L.E.A.P. Sponsors" of a high school L.E.A.P. club. 
Mrs. Susan Rodemann's fourth grade class at Rillieux Elementary recently won a contest sponsored by Elmer's Glue. The class constructed a 3-D paper castle using a software program that encouraged higher order thinking skills and creativity. The class was awarded a Techmedia Multimedia PC valued at $2,000. Walter Richardson and Arthur Banks were chosen School Bus Drivers of the Year for 1998/99. Deborah Sanchez Bridge City Elementary School and Sandra Schlumbrecht, Bridgedale Elementary School have been selected Child Nutrition Personnel of the Year. 
Mr. Robert Stevens, plant manager at Roosevelt Middle School and Mr. David Doueet, plant manager at William ttart Elementary School have been selected as Support Personnel of the Year. Betty Baptiste a paraprofessional from Jefferson Elementary School and Ms. Lana Mayeux, a paraprofessional from C.T.Janet Elementary School, were selected as Paraprofessional Employees of the Year. Karen Rodriguez, West Bank and Terry White, East Bank were selected Jefferson Parish Public School System Volunteers of the Year. Linda Asprion, Secretary from Bridgedale Elementary School and Randolph McClendon, account clerk from C,T. Janet Elementary School were selected secretaries, clerical personnel and account clerk Employees of the Year. A1 Robichaux, Jr. was presented the American Society of Genealogist Donald Lines Jacobus Award. Mr Robiehaux, Director of Planning and Special Education Transportation received this award for his excellent contribution to genealogy in the publication of German Coast Families European Origins and Settlement in Colonial Louisiana. 
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Live Oak Elementary and Pittman Elementary met all the criteria necessary to be recognized as State Title 1 Distinguished Schools for |he 1998-99 school year. Carolyn Sanders O'Hare, principal of Jefferson Elementary School, was elected to serve as the next president of the Greater New Orleans Free-Net, Inc. (GFOFN) Mrs. O'Hare participated in the creation and development of the Free-Net and has served as vice-president and education chairperson since 1994 Dr. Diane Roussel, Riverdale High School principal, was invited to speak and repeat her session at the National Association of Secondary School Principals (NASSP) 83rd annual convention. Paul Emenes, regional executive director for the east bank, has received the Recognizing Inspirational People award from the Kiwanis Club of Moisant. Dr. Sharon Little, principal at Schneckenburger Elementary School, has co-authored the textbook, "Introduction of Comprehensive Health Promotion for Elementary School; the tlealth Ahead/Heart Smart Program" which has recently been published. Wade ]'rice, teacher at Gretna Junior Itigh School, was nominated by B.E.S.E. and selected by the Louisiana Department of Education to be a member of the Louisiana Social Studies Textbook Adoption Committee. Clifton Castecl, a teacher at Gretna Junior High, had an article accepted for national publication by the Journal of Education Research. The article "Teacher-Student Interactions and Race in Integrated Classrooms" appeared in the November/December 1998 issue. Cherry Hall Roussel, visual art teacher in the talent education program, recently received an award for her contributions in promoting children's art in Jefferson Parish fiom the Louisiana Art Educators Association. Two Jefferson Parish Public School System 8(g) programs have been selected by the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education for being exemplary. "Project Pal IlI: Program About Learning Ill" authored by Barbara Cassara, principal at Bissonet Plaza Elementary School, and "Literacy Skills Enhancemcnt Project" authored by Patsy Waddell, teacher at Strehle Elementary School were recognized as being exceptional. Valcrie Owen, leacher; Kathleen Coleman, special education teacher and Lynn Arrubarrena, paraprofessional form the core of the third grade inclusion team at Vic Pitre Elementary who received the "Friends of Special Education" by the Special Education Advisory Council. Judy Weekley, an ED/'BD special education teacher at Woodmere elementary was awarded the Professionally Recognized Special Education (PRSE) for Special Education Teaching by the Council for Exceptional Children. BelleSouth awarded a cash prize of $500 to Jane Verett of Higgins High School for her outstanding entry in the BellSouth Foundation Teacher internship essay contest. 



STUDENT RECOGNITION Sara Sands from Harold Keller Elementary School, Jessica Larche from Helen Cox Junior High School and Laura Campos from East Jefferson High School were selected as Students of the Year. They will represent Jefferson Parish in state competition. Jessiea was also selected as Middle/Junior high student for Region VI. The first place winners in the 1998-99 Academic Games Equations tournament were: David Roux, Enender, individual winner in the middle school division. Meisler Chiefs was the middle school division team winner. Individual winners in the junior high school division were Geoffrey Rodriguez, Ehret and Toan Van, Gretna Junior. Junior high school division team winner was Ehret A. Individual winner in the senior high school division was An Le, East Jefferson and senior high school division team winner was Ehret A. The first place winners in the 1998-99 Academic Games Linguishtik tournament were: Brian Truong, Ellender first place individual. Middle school division team winner was Adams. Junior high individual winner was Geoffrey Rodriguez, Ehret. Junior high school division team winner was Ehret A. Daniel Hudson, Ehret, was the individual winner in the high school division. The high school division team winner was Ehret A. Raphael Clark a sixth grade student at B.A. St. Ville Elementary School, won the 1998 statewide Louisiana Art Educators Association Billboard Contest. Artwork from four Jefferson Parish Public School System students were published in the 1999 Department of Environmental Quality calendar. They are: Lisa Sun and Shawn Harding, Marie Riviere Elementary School; Justin Selva, Alice Bimey Elementary School and Kenneth Pittman, Ella Dolhonde Elementary school. The following are first place winners in the "Bill of Rights and Me" 1998 essay contest. Thad Nguycn Tran, seventh grade, Troman Middle; Chang Nguyen, ninth grade, Henry Ford Junior tiigh; tenth grade, Thuy Nguyen, Ehret; eleventh grade, Kris James, Ehret; twelfth grade, Lindsay Buras, Ehret who was also the overall winner of the contest. Katie Wintz, a first grade student at Harahan Elementary School and Shelley Rolland, Marrero Middle School were both recipients of the stalewide "Yes I Can!" award. Shelly Davis, Miller Wall student won a $200 United States Savings Bond for placing in the Jefferson Parish Credit Union's AWEssay Contest. Nam Nguyen and Quoc Huy Nham, French students at L.W. Higgins ttigh School, placed in a state competition in honor of FrancoFete '99. They authored a children's book entitled Un voyage au Zoo which is being considered by two publishing companies in New York for publication this fall. East Jefferson Itigh School senior Colleen Berner won first chair clarinet in the Southeastern Louisiana University stalewide regional honor band. Bonnabel High School was selected by Cox Communications to be one of only eight schools in the country to participate in a live nationwide webcast. Jeremy Starr, a senior at Riverdale ltigh School, was chosen for the WWL "A"++ Athletes' Award 
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Nine students from John Ehret ltigh School received the High Schools That Work Award of Educational Achievement presented by the Southern Regional Educational Board to career-bound seniors who meet high standards of academic performance. The recipients include: Joni Barlow, Rebecca Dauzat, Crystal Gonzales, David Harbiston, Jessica Koederitz, Mark Montgomery, Sandy Nguyen, Nathan Thomas, and Hoan Vuong. "/'he 1998-99 Riverdale ttigh School varsity cheerleaders placed first in the large varsity co-ed division at the Universal Cheerleading Association Regional Competition. The Bonnabel lligh School student council recently won the title of state president at the 50th anniversary of Louisiana Association of Student Councils (LASC) Conference. Melody Baham represented the state of Louisiana and Bonnabel Itigh School in all national student council events and activities this past year. Grace King High School's newspaper, Irish Eyes, has earned a first place rating from the Columbia Scholastic Press Association (CSPA) ranking it among the best high school newspapers in the country T.It. Haris dance team placed as best team in their division in the National Dance, Drill, and Cheer Competition Contest of Champions. The team was named as the Grand National Champions. Dorian Price, a fifth grade student at Audubon Elementary School is a first prize winner in the Labels for Education "Campbell's Souper School Stuff' art contest. Corey Anderson, ]man Lamplon, David Bonhagen, Andres Mar, and Brennan Walsh were winners in the Louisiana Philharmonic art poster contest. These students are fourth and fifth graders in the gifted/talented program at Audubon Elementary School. ]'he following Bonnabel High School students were gold medal winners at the Louisiana USA SKILLS/VCIA competition. Ana Barahona won in secondary culinary arts, Lori Lemoine in secondary advertising design and Shaun Hubbard and Priscilla Goodwyne in Secondary television production. The following students were first place winners in the 1999 Greater New Orleans Science and Engineering Fair. The Grand Award Winner was Uche'Obih from Mcisler. Other winners included: Junior Division; Uche'Obih, Meisler, Biological Sciences; Brian Caraher, Adams, Earth and Space Science; Chris Pasvantis, Meisler, Physical Sciences; Frances Gutierrez and Caitlin Burger, Adams, Team Projects; Senior Division, Sunita Arora, Grace King, Mathematics; American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics-Greater New Orleans Section, Clifton De Franco, West Jefferson; American Society of Civil Engineers - New Orleans Branch, Junior Division, Brian Caraher, Adams; Association of Energy Engineers, Louisiana Chapter Junior Division, Cory Sarvis, Adams; Bell South Junior Division, Michael Lavigne and Bobby Murrell, Riverdale Middle; Clio Sportsman's League, Senior Division, Tam Nguyen, Gretna Junior; Junior Division, Brian Caraher, Adams; Gen & Mineral Society of Louisiana, Inc., Senior Division, Heather Camardelle, Ford; Dorothy Van Lue Habeeb Award, Junior Division, Chris Pasvantis, Meisler; New Orleans, Chapter of Sigma XI, Scientific Research Society of North America, Junior Division, Brian Caraher and Cory San, is, Adams; New Orleans Federal Executive Board, Senior Division, Jovion Roberts, Ehret; Junior Division, Stephanie Luu, Gretna Junior; New Orleans Geological Society, Junior Division, Brian Caraher, Adams; Society of Petroleum Engineers (SPE) Inc., Junior Division, Brian Caraher, Adams; Society of Women Engineers - Greater New Orleans Scctionl Senior Division, Joivon Roberts, Ehret; Women for a Better Louisiana, Senior Division, Tam Nguyen, Gretna Junior; American Meteorological Society, Junior Division, Derek Smith, 
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Roosevelt; Discovery Junior Science Competition, Junior Division, Uche' Obih, Chris Pasvantis, Meisler Brian Calaher, Cory Sarvis, Rad Laguna and Bradley Mundell, Adams; NACE International, Senior Division, ]tacarelh Nwosu, Ehret, National Council of Teaehers of Mathematics, Senior Division, Sunita Arora, King and U.S. Army, Senior Division, Dung Tang, Ehret. The following students were first place winners in the West Bank Social Studies fair:Division I, Individual, Economics, Kimberly Sevin, Pitre Elementary; Geography, Colin Baker, Janet Elementary; Sociology, Tyler Baker, Marrero Middle. Division 1, Group, Economics, Christopher Rodgers and Mason Gordon, Janet Elementary; Geography, Joseph Murphy, Estelle Elementary; Itistory, Chentel Cretini and Dustin Cretini, Pitre Elementary; Political Science, Ruston Boutte and Philip Foret, Lafitte; Sociology, Chidi Nwosu, Woodland West Elementary. Division 1I, Individual, Anthropology, Joshua Switzer, ltelen Cox Junior; Geography, Darpan Patel, Livaudais Junior High. Division II, Group, Anthropology, Jessica Dickison, Hiral Patel, Sarah St. Blanc, and Angela Frey, Livaudais Junior High; Geography, Helen Panepinto and Kathy Nguyen, Truman Middle; Sociology, De'Jeune Antoine, Candorice Miles and Tiffany Devezin, Livaudais Junior High. Division III, Individual, Anthropology, Jacob BJtoun, Higgius Iligh; Economics, Jenny Lijeberg, Higgins High; Geography, Keokia Preatlo, Ehret lligh; History, Jennifer Hagardon, Livaudais Junior High; Political Science, Peter Tran, ltiggins tligh; Sociology, Sheila Bruce, Higgins ttigh. Division 11I, Group, Anthropology, Huong Dang and Dana Lua, West Jefferson Itigh; Economics, Bich Nguyen, Mary Nguyen, and Theresa Nguyen, Higgins ttigh; Geography, Van Kha and Loan Nguyen, Higgins High; History, Tranh ltuynh and Quoc Ituy Nhan, ttiggins ltigh; Political Science, Erin Mullane and Laura Lott, Ehret High; Sociology, Dien Thuy Tran and Dung Tran, Ehrel Itigh. Division IV, Special Education, Gerald Sullivan, Woodmere Elementary. The following students were first place winners in the East Bank Social studies fair:Division 1, Individual, A~alhropology, Gabriene Gilbert, Hearst Elementary; Economics, Rayne Faucheux, Keller Elementary; Geography, Krista Allen, Bissonet Elementary; History, Angie Seale, Ellis Elementary; Sociology, Caiatlin Roherham, Hearst Elementary. Division I, Group, Anthropology, Erin Leonard and Meredith Cook, Meisler Middle; Economics, Treva Lincoln and Rachelle Todesca, Bissonet Elementary; Geography, Sabrina Coello and Gabby Lloyd, Green Park Elementary; History, Mia Goldwasser and Samantha Mason; Political Science, Johathan Poche and Stefan Farrell, Birney Elementary; Sociology, David Bonhagen and Brian Burkette, Audubon Elementary. Division II, Individual, Geography, Adama ]tyla, Itaynes Middle; Political Science, Argha Roy, Haynes Middle. Division II, Group, Anthropology, Chris Milton and Lance Campas, Meisler Middle; Economics, Maggie Clack and Cecilia Chea, Adams Middle; Georgraphy, Maria Kardoulias and Chantel Morehouse, Meisler Middle; ttistory, Stephanie Dclcambre and Rene Heer, Harris Missle; Political Science, Brian Shamas, Derek Roth, Brandon Dupont, Lena Samen and Mike Borey, Roosevelt Middle; Sociology, Brynn Cox and Amy Gomez, Roosevelt Middle. Division 1II, Individual, Anthropology, Tong Itowkai, Bonnabel High; Economics, Rachel Presser, King ttigh; Geography, Jayaprabha Vijaykumar, King High; History, Glenn Dyer, King High; Political Science, John Palmisano, Bonnabel High; Sociology, Rachel Culotta, King Itigh. Division III, Group, Anthropology, Jenny Chen and Jenny Mak, Bonnabel High; Economics, Kristen Roth and Gwen Johnson, East Jefferson tligh; Geography, Uasir Igbal, Korey Picket, Kevin Songy, and Nareisso Palma, Bonnabel ttigh; History, Rena Liu, Monique Vargas, Candice Ross, and Mariel Segar, King tligh;Politica) Science, Keisi Bernard, Jarod Emriek, and Adam Kennedy, King High; Sociology, Janessa Marsh and Stacy Whitlow, King ttigh. Division IV, Special Education, Kris Damon Runyon, Birney Elementary. 
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The following Cuillier Career Center VICA students were first place winners at the local competition held recently. They are Melodic Martinez, Action Skills; Ronald Rosson, Computer Maintenance Tech Marshall LeBlanc, Masonry; Shaquilla DuBois, Medical Office. These students are eligible to attend VICA National Competition this summer. Twenty-three teams of fourth and fifth graders representing 12 Jefferson Parish elementary schools recently participated in the Thinking Cap Quiz Bowl at both the parish and state levels. At the parish level, fifth grade first place team winners were from Alice Birney; fourth grade first place team winners were from J.C. Ellis. At the state level, Alice Birney's fifth grade team placed first. The first place winners for the 1999 Louisiana School Boards Association artwork contest were as follows: K-4 category, Jeffrey Bruno, Bissonet Plaza; 5-8 category, Lauren Underwood, Haynes Middle and 9-12 category, Kelli Cummins, Grace King High, Lester Smith of John Ehret High School LE.A.P. (Louisiana Engineering Advancement Program) Club received one of only three $1,500 scholarships awarded at the University of New Orleans L.E.A.P. awards banquet. Justin ttendrix was recognized as Ehret's "Most Outstanding L.E.A,P. Student." Adams Middle School won the Junior Quiz Bowl Competition. This is the fifth first place for the Adams team. Lisa Sun, Riviere Elementary student won first place in the Block Kids Contest. Over 120 school children competed. Stacey Byers was presented the 1999 Prudential Spirit of Community Award for her outstanding work in her community. She implemented a peer mediation program to resolve student conflicts at Riverdale High School. The Prudential Spirit of Community Award is a nationwide program. Bonnabel lligh school freshmen Carleetha Lankster and Jenny Punchot are winners in the Times Picayune Newspaper In Education Week essay contest. The Jefferson Parish Council of the International Reading Association Young Authors contest state winners from Jeffizrson Parish Public School System are as follows: Birney, special education kindergarten, Antoine Hubert, first place poetry and Airline Park, special education kindergarten, Aaron Carter, first place, non-fiction. Justin Albritton, Bonnabel Ifigh School junior, participated with the U.S. Navy Wind Ensemble from Washington D.C. at Tulane University. He was invited to participate with the band because he achieved the highest honor in the State by placing first on trumpet in the Louisiana Music Educators Association's All-State tryouts. Meisler Middle School cheerleaders won first place for a third time in the Mardi Gras Cheerleading Championships and placed twelfth in the nation at the National High School Cheerleading Championships and will be featured on ESPN and ESPN 2. 
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NSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAM We recognize that today's student is different, and we must address their various learning styles. 7"0 improve student performance beyond standardized testing, we rewrote the school's curriculum standards in language arts and math. Curriculum content, methodology, and assessment standards were strengthened to better align them with state and national benchmarks. While the teachers who participate in the revision process are testing new curriculum, curriculums are also being rewritten in the areas of science, social studies, foreign language, and the arts. This standards-based curriculum will address the various learning styles of today's students while establishing higher benchmarks for student perfornaance Widespread agreement exists that education in Louisiana must be improved. In 1997, the state legislature passed, and the governor signed into law, legislation that mandated several significant changes in public education for grades kindergarten through 12. Among other things, the law established a student :rod school accountability system, giving the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education (SBESE) the authority to create the accountability system and the Louisiana Department of Education (LDE) the responsibility to create the tests and reporting systems and to implement the directions of the SBESE. Since then the SBESE, advisory groups composed of educators and citizens from all over the state, and the Department have been working to develop all facets of the accountability system that will help to improve education. 
The primary purpose of the student and school accountability systems is to ensure that each child in the state has the opportunity to receive an education adequate for productive citizenship in the 21 st century. The systems measure student performance, and hold students, schools, and districts accountable for the performance of students. They also hold schools and districts responsible for helping students achieve high standards of learning. Students must meet certain standards in order to be promoted from grades 4 and 8. Schools will be required to make improvements until their students meet the standards. Schools whose students meet the standards and schools that improve over a period of fime will be recognized. Schools that do not make sufficient improvement will receive active assistance from the district and state Severe sanctions are possible ifa school persistently fails to meet its goals. Every Louisiana student in grades 3 through 8 will participate in either the criterion-referenced LEAP for the 21st Century (LEAP 21) tests or the norm-referenced Iowa Tests each year in April. (Students may be exempted from taking all or some tests for medical reasons, because of limited English proficiency, or by meeting other specific criteria. For these criteria, see the section on student eligibility.) Each student will receive individual results of the state-mandated tests by June. There are currently requirements that high school students must meet in order to graduate with a high school diploma. These requirements are not discussed in this manual. It is anticipated that the high school tests and standards may be revised in the future. In 1998-99, test scores for students in grades 4 and 8 who took the LEAP 21 mathematics and English language arts tests, and scores for students in grades 3, 5, 6, and 7 who took The Iowa Tests will be included in the calculation of grades K-8 schools' initial baseline School Performance Scores (SPS) and Growth Targets. The SPS used to set the Growth Target is based on all students tested, ltowevcr, the SPS calculated initially to determine a school's placement into Level I Corrective Actions is based on scores of regular education students only. In 2000/2001, School Performance Scores for Grades K-8 schools will be calculated again using the LEAP 21 mathematics and English language arts scores along with The Iowa Tests scores from spring 2000 and spring 2001 to determine the progress schools have 



made since 1998/99. In addition, for grades 4 and 8, LEAP 21 science and social studies tests will be added beginning in 1999-2000. The science and social studies tests will be included in the baselines for the next accountability cycle. 
For grades 9-12 schools, the initial baseline School Performance Scores and Growth Targets will be calculated from spring 2001 LEAP 21 Graduation Exit Examination scores and grade 9 scores from The Iowa Tesls. School Accountability Renorts School accountability results will be made available primarily through the School Accountability Report, first issued in September 1999. The School Accountability Report will include a School Performance Score that shows the school's standing in relation to the state's ten-and twenty- year gols. The SPS summarizes the performance of the school's students on the accountability indicators of the LEAP 21 criterion-refemeced test, the norm-refereced Iowa Tests, attendance rate, and dropout rate (grades 7-8). The report will also provide the school's Growth Target, which represents the progress the school must make every two years to reach the state goals. Each school will be assigned a Performance Label based on its success in reaching its Growth Target. The report will also include scores and additional details for each of the accountability indicators: the LEAP 21 criterion-referenced test, the norm-referenced Iowa Tests, attendance rate, and dropout rate (for grades 7-8). As part of the School Accountability Report, each school in the accountability system will receive a School Performance Score (SPS) each year. Based on the performance of the school in relation to the state goals and its Growth Targets, sach school will receive a Performance Label. The Performance Label characterizes the school's absolute performance in relation to the I 0-year goals established by the state. Based on its Performanc Label in 1999, schools will be declared eligible for corrective actions or recognition for high performance. The Performance Label associated with each School Performance Score rance is given below 
SPS 150.0 o1" higher 125.0- 149.9 100.0- 124.9 state average SPS-99.9 30.1 to state average 30.0 or lower 

Performance Label School of Academic Excellence School of Academic Distinction School of Academic Achievement Academically Above Average Academically Below Average Academically Unacceptable School As a result of the new state accountability program, we embarked, in 1997, on a concentrated program to improve students' standardized test scores, dedicating more than $500,000 in additional instructional materials and teacher-training to this program. We set goals to decrease the percentage of students in the lowest quartile, to increase the percentage of students above the national average, and to enable at least 50 percent of students to score 50 percent or better on the standardized tests. To achieve this, we established a nine-member task force. Armed with the Spring 1997 test results, the task force met with each of the 83 principals to analyze their school's performance and develop an individualized plan for improvement, based on the strengths and weaknesses of that school. Each school's instructional plan 
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was augmented with results of a system-wide standardized pretest that was administered in the fall of 1997. The testing task force cycle was repeated a( the end of the school year and continued in school years 1998 and 1999. As a result, student outcomes on national The Jefferson Parish Public School System does not have any schools in the "Academically Unacceptable" category. To assure that our students have a safe place to learn and that all students receive the education to which they are entitled, we spend approximately $5 million on discipline and safe school programs. Full-time deputies now police seven high schools and two junior high schools as a preventive measure. The Police On Campus program is a partnership with the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office to ensure that every child should be able to come 1o school and feel safe, comfortable, and have a joy-filled day. The program has received the statewide 1998 Criminal Justice Award. New curriculum content and standards inevitably change the way teaching, learning, and assessments occur in the classroom. To prepare our teachers to make the most of the new curriculums, we are conducting training throughout the school year. The training is not only intended to help teachers present the new curriculum, but also to introduce them to teaching methods that have been shown to produce higher skill levels in students. Accelerated Readers programs, for example, have increased reading level and library usage. Louisiana Systemic Initiative Program math-teaching methods have improved mathematics test scores. Our school year calendar has been expanded to include two additional staff development days for teachers. Teachers receive guidance on developing better tests, administering tests more effectively, improving student preparation for tests, and interpreting test scores for continuous improvement of their teaching, curriculum development, and test methods. Technology remains a top priority for our teaching staff. To that end, we have established five teaching/learning labs. These labs are available to teachers, teacher assistants, and clerical staff in order to keep them abreast of the current technology necessary to meet the needs of their students and our community. Our student population is diverse, but we believe thai all children can learn. We teach tolerance, respect for diversity, and recognition of various learning styles to address student differences. Our programs include Project Read for dyslexic students, 504 accommodations, English Speaks of Other Languages, character and values education, peer mediation, Drug Awareness Resistance Education, Gang Resistance Education Awareness Training, and Teen Court. We have trained our administrators and teachers in learning styles, values education, non-crisis prevention, and cultural awareness in addition to curriculum training. We endorse the idea that learning is a positive experience between a good teacher and a student ]'he heart of the school system is a varied curriculum and a wide range of educational experiences offered from pre-kindergarten through adulthood for the community. ~ The core curriculum addresses English, mathematics, science, reading, social studies, creative arts and physical education. Electives in junior and senior high school include foreign languages, art, music, vocational courses, computer science and computer literacy. ~ ]'he program for academically gifted students offers structured enrichment classes and specially designed elective classes to children beginning at age three and continuing through grade 12. 
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~ The special education department identifies and evaluates children with disabilities from birth through the age of 21. Students receive occupational therapy, physical therapy, speech, and social work services as well as specialized instrl/ctJon during the school year and the summer (exlended school year). They are taught skills to help them function in the community, and they are offered the largest array of vocational programs, including job counseling and placement. ~ The vocational education plan ensures that every freshman will be able to take a vocational elective This plan also integrates career awareness in all subject matter areas. ~ Title I is a federally funded program designed to improve the educational opportunities of educationally deprived children by helping them succeed in the regular program, attain grade level proficiency, and improve achievement in basic and more advanced skills. These purposes are accomplished through academic instruction in the areas of reading/language arts and math, increased parental involvement and implementation of innovative programs. ~ Adult education provides instructional offerings in basic academic and life-long coping skills thai will enable the adult student to continue an education. Students in the adult education program must be 16 years of age or older, must not be enrolled in the K-12 system, and must have less than a high school education. Project Open Door, Project Independence, and classes in English as a second language in addilion Io basic education classes and pre-GED classes assist the adult in the ability 1o function more productively and responsibly in society. STUDENT ENROLLMENT During the period 1977/78 through 1991/92, public school enrollment showed a changing trend. In 1977/78, the first negative growth in recent history was experienced and the trend continued until 1983/84 when a trend reversal to a positive growth began continuing into 1988/89. The trend now is negative growth at an increasing rate. This is true of most of the 66 school districts in Louisiana. The overall Louisiana population is in a downward spiral. The following table lists the enrollment, average daily membership and average daily attendance. 
School Year 1977/78 1978/79 1979/80 1980/81 1981/82 1982/83 1983/84 1984/85 1985/86 1986/87 1987/88 1988/89 1989/90 1990/91 

Student Enrollment 69,627 67,069 63,216 61,594 59,522 56,951 55,715 56,698 56,841 57,686 57,856 58,234 57,479 57,085 

Student Enrollment Data Increase/ Average Daily <Decrease> Membership <799> <2,558> <3,853> <1,622> <2,072> <2,571> <1,236> 983 143 845 170 378 <755> <394> 
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67,914.4 65,533.2 62,415.0 60,092.0 58,334.0 55,514.0 54,394.0 55,714.0 55,874.0 56,577.0 56,735.8 57,040.0 56,590.7 57,971.0 

Average Daily Attendance 61,519.2 59,165.4 54,973.0 54,268.0 53,015.0 51,589.8 51,501.9 52,199.9 52,441.0 53,292.0 53,209.7 53,076.0 52,482.4 53,682.0 



1991/92 1992/93 1993/94 1994/95 1995/96 1996/97 1997/98 1998/99 1999/00 

57,252 56,657 55,475 56,137 55,008 54,576 54,587 53,124 51,507 

<167> <595> ~1,182> 662 <1,129> <432> 11 <1,463> <1,617> 

55,592.9 55,241.0 54,638.3 55,022.8 52,008.0 52,024.0 52,031.6 52,274.0 

50,701.0 49,042.0 53,489.3 52,984.8 48,960.0 48,960.0 49,128.3 46,639.0 
The School System has a tremendous financial impact on the community. It has in excess of 7,700 employees and an annual payroll in excess of $170 million. It also spends annually $50 million on goods and services, and over $10 million for repairs and renovations, The overall economy in Jefferson Parish continues to show improvements through diversification. Jefferson Parish is the second most populated parish in Louisiana with the population showing a slight decrease in 1998. The per capital income in Jefferson is consistently higher than the majority of Louisiana's parishes and the state as a whole. Further job growth in Jefferson Parish is expected to be concentrated most heavily in service businesses, especially professional services such as law, medicine, accounting, engineering and financial services. An area which has recently grown is the oil and gas industry particularly on the Harvey Canal located on the west bank. While Jefferson Parish offers all of the business amenities and services which commercial establishments look for, it also affords its residents a high quality of life-with good schools, low crime rates and plenty of recreational activities. The training facility of the New Orleans Saints is located in Jefferson Parish, and a minor league baseball park opened in April, 1997, home to tile AAA semi-professional New Orleans Zephyrs. Jefferson Parish is well on its way to becoming the future business and commercial bub of the Gulf South, but it has not forgotten ils rich history nor neglected its abundant natural and scenic resources, It is a community where quality of life and progress go hand-in-band. In an attempt to shed the label "bedroom community," which is so often applied to suburban areas on the perimeters of large cities, Jefferson has moved progressively forward with major office and shopping complexes springing up everywhere. For the tourist, Jefferson Parish is a popular home base from which to explore the/hscinating environs of South Louisiana. Its modern, first class accommodations are competitively priced and offer a quiet, safe and affordable environment in which to enjoy the quaint charm andjoie de vivre of the surrounding parishes. Jefferson is home to the Jean Lafitte National Park and ~.he Bayou Segnette State Park, both of which are very popular with residents and tourists alike. While catering to family tourists, Jefferson Parish has an extensive collection of fine restaurants, many specializing in Creole and Cajun cuisine. Residents and tourists alike participate in the lively parades and celebration of the Mardi Gras season throughout Jefferson Parish. Twelve institutions of higher learning are located in the New Orleans area and are easily accessible to Jefferson Parish residents. In addition, there are two theological institutions and several business, trade and technical schools which prepare students for various occupations. In December of FY 1995/96, the School Board issued $50 million in new 1/2e Sales Tax Bonds funded by the current 1/2c Sales Tax Revenue (no new tax was required). The new money was dedicated to renovations of existing schools, as well as new energy efficient lighting systems. As of October 1~ 1999, $44,637,391 of the projects have been bid or completed with $2,974,540 remaining to be completed. ]'he Jefferson Parish Public School System has operated with a positive general fund balance for many years. The fiscal year ended FY 1998/99 general fund fund balance is approximately $%8 million. The teachers in Jefferson Parish are unionized. In September of 1997, the Board and Union agreed to a new three (3) year contract ending June 30, 2000. This contract is valued at nearly $9 million. The Board and 
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administration will enter into negotiations with the union in February, 2000. The philosophy of the School Board is conservative and funds must be identified and recurring before recurring expenditures can be added to the budget. During FY 1993/94 the Jefferson Parish School Board adopted two fiscally conservative provisions that enhances its ability to provide quality education for the children it serves long term. These provisions are: ~ Non-recurring funds cannot be used to establish recurring expenditures ~ The first 2% of sales tax growth over and above that projected in the budget will be placed in a contingency fund and not automatically placed in the revenue equation for the next year's budget 
The Board of the Jefferson Parish Public School System established a long-range planning/redesign committee composed of various civic, and business organization representatives as well as School System personnel and meets monthly to develop a strategic plan. This committee, along with the Education Planning Committee (E.P.C.), plays a major role in deciding those programs and expenditures that are contained in the general fund operating budget as well as determine whether or not new revenues are needed and if so for what purpose(s). FINANCIAL INFORMATION Accounting System and Budgetary Contro 
In developing and evaluating the School System's accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internal accounting controls. In~.ernal accounting con'trols are designed "to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding: (l) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concepts of reasonable assurance recognizes lhal: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the School System's internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provided reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. Budgetary control is maintained at a detailed level by the encumbrance of estimated purchase amounls prior to the release of purchase orders to vendors. The School System emphasizes decentralized budgeting in order to enhance the ability of principals to serve as effective and efficient instructional leaders. In fiscal year 1987 the School Board gave principals, with input from subject coordinators, teachers, students and parents, the authority to spend the allocated financial resources to best meet the needs of their unique student groups. To accomplish this end, the School Board adopted a set of guidelines consistent with applicable State law. This system allows each school to determine its needs, establish budgets, and spend its financial resources according to ils own lime/able or reserve the funds for future years' needs. The vehicle for these aclions is the Student Activity Fund. All monies due a school are deposited directly into each school's activity account at the beginning of each school year. The principal, using School Board adopted guidelines, operates his/her school according to his/her individually tailored educational plan. A major advantage of this 



system is that it gives principals direct control over resources vital to achieving educational success and in so doing makes it easier to assess accountabilily for goal achievement. 
General Governmental Functions Revenues for Governmental Fund Types which include General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds total $339,201,930 in 1998/99, an increase of 4.8 percent over 1997/98. Sales taxes produced 39.7 percent of total revenues compared to 39.9 percent last year, and Stale Equalization produced 37.5 percent of total revenues compared to 38.8 percent last year. The amounts of revenues from various sources is shown in the following tabulation. 

Sales taxes Ad valorem taxes Tuition from patrons Other local (including interest) State sources Federal sources 

Amount $134,532,285 21,211,467 760,113 10,76t,654 140,483,130 31,453,281 $339,201,930 

Percent of Total 39.7% 6.2 .2 3.2 41.4 9.3 

Increase (Decrease) from 1998 
$ 5,286,612 431,475 91,682 (1,679,389) 778,797 10,492,334 

100.0% $ 15,401,511 Expenditures for Governmental Fund Types totaled $352,042,977 in 1998/99, a net increase of $8,401,346 or 2.4 percent from 1997/98. The primary component for the new increase was an increase of $9,100,524 in expenditures for instruction services, mainly due to salary increases. 

Instruction Supporting services Non-instruction Capital Outlay Debt Service: Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges Total expenditures 

Amount $199,604,462 103,847,386 3,103,618 19,498,716 
13,625,394 12,363,401 $ 352,042,977 

Percent of Total 56.7% 29.5 .9 5.5 3.9 3.5 

Increasc (Decrease) from 1998 $ 9,100,524 6,628764 (63,894) (5,763,766) (1,203,457) (296,825) 100.0% $ 8,401,346 The total fund balance for all Governmental Fund Types was $105,388,297 at year-end, an increase of $7,246,067 due mainly to the issuance of $22,000,000 in Ad ~alorem Bonds. At June 30. 1999 the General Fund had a furtd surplus of $7,094,854 on the budgetary basis. 
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Debt Administration The ratio of net bonded debt to assessed value and the amount of bonded debt per capita are useful indicators of the School System's debt position to management, citizens, and investors. These data for the School System as of June 30, 1999, were as follows: 
Amount Net Bonded Debt $21,911,193 Proprietary Fund Type 

Ratio of Net Bonded Debt to Assessed Value 0.93% 
Net Bonded Debt Per Capita $48 

The Enterprise-School Lunch Fund is used to account for the operations of the School System's cafeterias and other food facilities. The School System attempts to operate the Lunch Fund at a break-even level, although the School System provides operating transfers as necessary to fund any deficits generated on a cash basis. At June 30, 1999, deferred revenues of $602,524 were recognized which represents the value of unconsumed donated commodities at that date. The recognition of such deferred revenues resulted in a deficit in retained earnings of $500,911. For management purposes, the School System views deferred revenues as a component of fund equity. Cash Management During the year, tbe School System invested directly in instruments issued 19), the United States Government or its agencies created by an act of Congress, in repurchase agreements backed by such instruments, or in a guaranteed investment contract. The total amount of investment income earned for the year ended June 30, 1999 was $4,555,255. This was distributed as follows: Debt Service Fund Capital Projects Fund General Fund Enterprise Fund 
Total General Fixed Assets 

$ 1,367,843 2,263,710 870,707 52,995 
.$_4,555,255 

The fixed assets of the School System are used in the performance of the overall educational function. As of June 30, 1999, the general fixed assets of the School System amounted to $300,526,096. This anaounl represents the original cost and estimates of original cost of the assets and is considerably less than their currenl replacement value. Risk Management The School System maintains a limited risk program for worker compensation insurance. As part of this program, resources are being accumulated in the General Fund to meet potential losses. In addition, various risk control techniques including an employee safety program and pre-employment physicals have been implemented to minimize accidenl-related losses. Risk financing is accomplished through the purchase of various insurance policies from commercial insurers. 
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OTHER INFORMATION Independent Audit State law and School System policy require an ammal audit of the books of account and financial records of the School System by independent certified public accountants selected by the School Board. The School System has complied with this requirement, and the independent auditors' report is included in this report. Awards The Association of School Business Official International (ASBO) awarded a Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting, and the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the School System for its comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. This was the ninth consecutive year that the School System has received these prestigious awards. In order to be awarded these Certificates, the School System published an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Such a report satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. The Certificates are valid for a period of one year only. The School System believes that this current Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet both Certificate programs' requirements and will be submitted to ASBO and GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. Acknowledgments The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance and Accounting Activity of the Business Services Division. We would like to express our appreciation to all members of the division who assisted and contributed to its preparation. We also wish to thank the members of the School Board for their continued consideration and support and for planning and conducting the financial operations of the School System in a responsible and progressive manner. 

~XXI - 

Frank S. Davis Chief Financial Officer 



O~ sCHOOL BUsINEsS INTERNATIONAL 

This Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting is presented to JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
Upon recommendation of the Association's Panel substantially conforms to principles and standards 
President 

of Review which has judged that the Report of ASBO's Certificate of Excellence Program 
Executive Director 
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Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Presented to 
Jefferson Parish Public School System, Louisiana For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is presented by" the Government Finance O~icers Association of the United States and Canada to government units and public employee retirement systems whose comprehensive annual financial reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest standards in government accounting and financial reporting. 
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Deloitte & Touche LLP Rebowe & Company APC Hanford M. Harrison, CPA 
701 Poydras Street Suite 3700 New Orleans, Louisiana 70139 (504) 581-2727 

3501 N. Causeway Boulevard Suite 810 Metairie, Louisiana 70002 (504) 837-0123 
NDEPENDENTAUDITORS'REPORT Members of the School Board of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana: 

1027 Whitney Avenue Gretna, Louisiana 70056 (504) 368-2501 

We have audited the accompanying genera/purpose financial statements of the Jefferson Parish Public School System as of June 30, 1999 and for the year then ended, as listed in the foregoing table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Jefferson Parish Public School System's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the Jefferson Parish Public School System as of June 30, 1999, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The year 2000 supplementary information on page 71 is not a required part of the basic financial statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to apply to the information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue and its effects, and the fact that authoritative measurement criteria regarding the status of remediation efforts have not been established. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the Jefferson Parish Public School System is or will become year 2000 compliant, that the Jefferson Parish Public School System's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the Jefferson Parish Public School System does business are or will become year 2000 compliant. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements, schedules and other supplemental information listed in the foregoing table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Jefferson Parish Public School System. This additional information is the responsibility of the Jefferson Parish Public School System's management. Such additional information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects when considered in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 15, 1999 on our consideration of the Jefferson Parish Public School System's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. The statistical data listed in the foregoing table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Jefferson Parish Public School System. Such additional information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT JUNE 30, 1999 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS Governmental Fund Types pecla General Revenue Service Projects (.;ash and investments (Notes 2 and 14) $ 7,862,928 $ 8,610,813 $34,798,253 $57,242,879 P.eceivables: Sales and use lax (Note 5) Property tax (Note 4) Accounts Interest receivable Due from other funds (Note 8) Due from other governmental units 
]9,941,689 116,464 493,721 32,534 13,171,577 195,260 

/'repaid items (principally insurance) 2,144,513 Land, buildings and equipment, net(Notes 3 and 14) Amoun! available in Debt Service Funds(Note 7) Amount to be provided for retirement of general long term bonds Amount to be provided for compensated absences Amount to be provided for claims and judgments 

777,006 515,I64 6,990,815 
10,965 94,203 1,388,285 
1,561,448 
174,699 1,417,105 

Proprietary Fund Type Enterprise- School Lunch 

$ 3.495 
156,637 932,215 
811,150 

TOTAl. ASSETS AND OTI]ER DEBITS $43,958,686 $16,893,798 $36,291,706 $60,396,131 $1,903,497 The notes to financial statcmcnts arc an integral part of this statement 
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EXHIBIT A-1 Page 1 of 2 

Fiduciary Fund Type Agency 
$3,769,727 

Account Groups ~enera Fixed Assets 

$ 300,526,096 

Long Term Debt 
Governmental Component Totals Unit Totals Primary [he Jetterson Reporting Government Community Entity (Memorandum Charter (Memorandum Only) School Only) 

$112,284,600 $ 146,764 $112,431,364 
21,503,137 127,429 1,274,222 301,436 16,492,131 7,342,712 932,215 
2,144,513 

21,503,137 127,429 1,274,222 301,436 16,492.131 7,342,712 932.2]5 
2,144.513 

301,337,246 158,885 301,496,131 
$ 33,501,992 33,501,992 
141,921,778 141,921,778 
53,586,474 53,586,474 
250,000 250,000 

33,501,992 
141,921,778 
53,586,474 
250.000 

$3,769,727 $300,526,096 $229,260,244 $692,999,885 $ 305,649 $693,305,534 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT JUNE 30, 1999 

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 1JABILITIES: Accounts payable Retainages payable Accrued liabilities: Salaries, wages, payroll taxes and retirement contributions Claims and judgments (Notes 7 and 11) Compensated absences (Note 7) Workers' compcnsation clain~s (Note l I) Due to other funds (Note 8) Due to student groups, schools and others 

Governmental Fund Types 

Due to other governmental units Deferred revenue Bonds payable (Note 7) Total liabilities 

General ~peclal ueut Revenue Serv|ce (.;avltal Projects 
Proprietary Fund T_Vp~ Enterprise - School Lunch 

$ 1,457,354 $ 866,790 $ 12,066 $ 1,458,537 $ 73,441 2,083 
31,385,472 196,140 546,504 
876,583 228.868 12,140,529 2,777,648 163,147 1,181,939 

104,310 482,497 
34,144,417 13,594,126 EQUITY AND OTttER CREDITS: Investment in general fixed assets (Notes 3 and 14) Retained earnings (deficit) Fund balance (Note 12): Reserved 4,863,928 Unreserved: Designated Undesignated Total equity and other credits 
287,381 4,662,960 3,299,672 9.814,269 3,299,672 TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTI I ER CPd3DITS $ 43,958,686 $16,893,798 

-6- 

2,789,714 1,623,767 

33,501,992 9,750,955 49,021,409 
33,501,992 
$36,291,706 

58,772,364 
$60.396,131 

602.524 
2.404,408 
(500,911) 

(500,911) 
$1.903,497 



EXHIBIT A-I Page 2 of 2 

Fiduciary Fund Type Agency 

$3.769,727 

3.769.727 

Account Groups 5enera Fixed Assets 

$ 300,526,096 

300,526,096 

Long Term Debt 
Governmental Component Totals Unit Totals Primary The Jetterson Reporting Government Community Entity (Memorandum Charter (Memorandum Only) School Only) 

$ 3,868,188 2.083 
31,385,472 $ 250,000 446,140 53,586,474 54,132,978 876,583 16,492,131 
3,769,727 104,310 1,085,021 175,423,770 ]75,423,770 229,260,244 287,586,403 
300,526,096 $158,885 (500,911) 48,116,875 49,308,790 7,962,632 146,764 405,413,482 305,649 

$ 3,868,188 2,083 
31,385,472 446,140 54,132,978 876,583 16,492,131 
3,769,727 104,310 1,085,021 75.423.770 287,586,403 
300,684,981 (500,911) 48,116,875 49,308,790 8,109,396 405,719,131 

$ 3,769,727 $ 300,526,096 $ 229,260,244 $ 692,999,885 $ 305,649 $ 693,305,534 
-7- (Concluded) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, E-XPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND DISCRI-TELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

REVENUES: Local sources: Property taxes Sales and use taxes Tuition and other Investment income Other (Note 14) Slate sources Federal sources Total revenues EXPENDITURES: Current: Instruction Supporting services Non-instruction Capital outlay Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges Total expendilures EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): Operating transfers in (Note 8) Operating transfers out (Note 8) Transfers to component unit (Note 8) Transfers from primary government (Note 8) Proceeds from bond issuance Total other financing sources (uses) - net EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTIIEP, FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUNI) BAI,ANCES AT END OF YEAR The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
-8- 

Governmenta Genera 
$ 21,146,179 110,019,906 760,113 870,707 2,081,919 135,148,818 969,746 270,997,388 
176,651,086 90,534,496 8,469 
267,194,051 

~peclal Revenue 
$ 4,033,602 
5,334,312 30,483,535 39,851,449 
22,953,376 13,286,614 3,095,149 
39,335,139 3,803,337 516,310 

382,044 (5,069,804) (450,000) 27,242 (382,044) 
(5,137,760) (354,802) 
(1,334,423) 11,148,692 $ 9,814,269 

161,508 3,138,164 $ 3,299,672 



EXHIBIT A-2 

Fund Types Service uapltal Pr~ects 
65,288 4,800,000 $ 9,712,379 1.367.843 
16,233,131 
26,276 
13,625,394 12,363,401 26.015.071 

2,263,710 143.873 
12,119,962 

19,498,716 
19.498.716 

Totals Primary Government (Memorandum Only) 
$ 21,211,467 134,532,285 4,793,715 4,502,260 2,225,792 140,483,130 31,453,281 339,201,930 
199,604,462 103,847,386 3,103,618 19,498,716 13,625,394 12,363,401 352,042,977 

Governmental Component Unit Totals The Jefferson Reporting Community Entity Charter (Memorandum School Only) 

$ 12,526 279,008 
291,534 
319,990 339,716 33,503 
693,209 

339,493,464 
199,924,452 104,187,102 3,317,121 19,498,716 13,625,394 12,363,401 352.736.186 (9,781,940) (7,378,754) (12,841,047) (401,675) (13,242,722) 

9,018,844 (2,861,648) 4,496,363 (7,208,719) 13,924,493 (15,522,215) 050,000) 134,836 22,000,000 22,134,836 6,292,032 
(3,489,908) 36.991.900 

19,287,644 
11,908,890 46.863.474 

20,087,114 
7,246,067 98,142,230 

450,000 
450,000 
48,325 98,439 

13,924,493 (15,522,215) (450,000) 450,000 22,134,836 20,537,114 
7,294,392 98,240,669 $ 33,501,992 $ 58,772,364 $105,388,297 $146,764 $105,535,061 

-9- 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL - GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

REVENUES: Local sources Property taxes Sales and use taxes Tuition and other Investment income Other State sources Federal sources Total revenues EXPENDITURES: Instruction Supporting services Non-instruction Total expenditures EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTIIEP, FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Transfers to component unit 

General Fund Actual on Budgetary Basis 
$ 21,146,179 110,019,906 760,113 870,707 2,081,919 135,148,818 969,746 

Revised Budget 
$ 18,004,893 109,228,661 899,000 850,000 2,044,904 135,423,965 944,000 

variance- Favorable (Unfavorable) 
$ 3,141,286 791,245 (138,887) 20,707 37,015 (275,147) 25,746 270,997,388 267,395,423 3,601,965 

174,820,701 90,334,944 8,469 265,164,114 
5,833,274 
382,044 (5,069,804) (450,000) 

176,335,561 89,471,130 40,998 265.847.689 
1,547,734 
(2,282,249) (450,000) 

1,514,860 (863,814) 32.529 683,575 
4,285,540 
382,044 (2,787,555) Total other financing sources (uses) - net (5,137,760) (2,732,249) (2,405,511) EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTttER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES ENCUMBRANCES OUTSTANDING AT YEAR END 

695,514 (1,184,515) 1,880,029 
2,719,415 2,719,415 PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES EXPENDED IN CURRENT YEAR (4,749,352) (4,749,352) FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (GAAP BASIS) 11,148,692 13,756,158 (2,607,466) FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR (GAAP BASIS) $ 9,814,269 The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement -10- 
$ 10,541,706 $ (727,437) 



EXHIBIT A-3 

Budgeted Special Revenue Funds Actual on Budgetary Basis Revised Budget variance- Favorable (Unfavorable) 
$3,267,451 $2,923,280 $ 344,171 
469,213 607,331 4,343,995 
1,506,231 628,183 1,935,075 4.069.489 
274.506 

452,898 395,136 
1,404,125 694,318 1,708,808 3,807,251 

16,315 212.195 572,681 
(102,106) 66,135 (226,267) (262,238) 

(35,937) 310,443 

274,506 (35,937) 310,443 

1,468,317 1,468,317 
$1,742,823 $1,432,380 $ 310,443 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM EXHIBIT A-4 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - SCHOOL LUNCH ENTERPRISE FUND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 
OPERATING REVENUE - Food service sales 
OPERATING EXPENSES: Salaries and related benefits Food costs Material and supplies Contractual services Depreciation Miscellaneous Printing Repairs and maintenance Travel Utilities Total OPERATING LOSS NONOPERATING REVENUES: Investmcnt income Federal grants in aid: Donated commodities School lunch and breakfast program Other restricted revenues Total 
NET LOSS BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS OPERATING TRANSFERS 1N 
NET LOSS RETAINED EAI~NINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEM~, RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR 
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement 

-12- 

$ 2,669,596 
9,996,103 6,132,687 868,864 237,842 346,089 20,235 12,542 363,059 17,432 601.789 18,596,642 (15,927,046) 
52.995 565,710 12,512,079 227,536 13,358,320 (2,568,726) 1.597.722 (971,004) 470.093 $ (500,911) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE SCHOOL LUNCH ENTERPRISE FUND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

EXHIBIT A-5 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Operating loss Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities: Depreciation Donated commodities used Change in assets and liabilities: Increase in accounts receivable Increase in inventories Increase in accounts payable Decrease in compensated absences Net cash used in operating activities CASIt FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES Federal grants in aid Increase in due to other funds Operating transfers in Other restricted revenue Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 
CASII FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES - Acquisition of capital assets CASIt FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - Investment income received NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CAStt EQUIVALENTS CASll AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR CASIt AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR NONCASII INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES Donated commodities received Donated commodities used Total noncash investing, capital, and financing activities - net 
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement 

-13- 

$ (15,927,046) 

$ 

346,089 1,129,117 (6,335 (48,423 25,902 (2,654 (14,483,350) 
12,512,079 129,735 1,597,722 227,536 14,467,072 
(85,898) 
52,995 (49,181) 49,181 
$ 1,168,234 (1,129,117) 39,117 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

EXHIBIT A-6 

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES The Jefferson Parish Public School System (the School System) is an independent special district created for the purpose of providing elementary and secondary education to the citizens of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana. The School System is governed by an elected board comprised of nine members. The following is a summary of the School System's significant accounting policies which conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental units: Reporting Entity- In conformity with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) definition of a reporting entity, the general purpose financial statements of the School System include the accounts of all School System operations. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the School System as the primary government. The School System has one component unfl, the Jefferson Community Charter School, which is presented as a discretely presented component unit. The Jefferson Community Charter School is included in the reporting entity because it is fiscally dependent on the School System. However, the Charter School is a legally separate entity and, as such, appoints its own Board. The purpose of the Charter School is to provide an ahernative middle school for at-risk public school students in the sixth, seventh and eighth grade who have been expelled from the parish public school system to learn appropriate behavioral and academic skills enabling them to return as functioning, responsible participants in the public middle and high schools. The component unit also has a June 30 year end. Complete financial statements of the component unit ean be obtained from the Charter School. The School System and its component unit represent the reporting entity. Additionally, the School System is a legally-separate governmental organization that has a separately elected governing body and does not meet the definition of a component unit. Basis of Presentation - FundAccounthag - The accounts of the School System are organized on the basis of funds or account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund balance, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. The various funds are summarized by type in the financial statements. The following fund types, account groups and discretely presented component unit are used by the School System: Governmental Fund Types General Fnnd - to account for all financial resources and expenditures except those rcquired to be accounted for in another fund. Special Revenue Funds - to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes. Debt Service Funds - to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest and related costs. Capital l~ojects Funds" - to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). 
- 14- 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

EXHIBIT A-6 (Continued) 

Proprietary Fund Type Enterprise Fund - to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenscs incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. The only enterprise fund maintained by the School System is the School Lunch Fund which provides lunch, breakfast and milk to students at reduced prices. Fiduciary Fund Type Ageno, Funds - to account for assets held by the School System as an agent for others. 
Account Groups Account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the School System's Gcneral Fixed Assets and General Long-Term Debt. The following arc the School System's Account Groups: General Fixed Assets Account Group - Fixed assets used in Governmental Fund Type operations are accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, rather than in governmental funds. General fixed assets consist of land, buildings and improvements, and equipment with an expected useful life of more than one year. Purchases of general fixed assets are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase Depreciation is not recorded on general fixed assets. General Long-Term Debt Account Group - Long-term liabilities such as unmatured general obligation indebtedness and the long-term portion of compensated absences expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted for in the General I.ong-Term Debt Account Group. Component Unit The component unit of the School System, the Jefferson Community Charter School, is accounted for as a Governmental Fund Type. Basis of Accounting - The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. The Governmental Fund Types are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed by the Governmental Fund Types and the Agency Funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual (i.e., both measurable and available). Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures, other than principal and interest on long-ternl debt, compensated absences, and claims and judgments which are recognized when due, arc recorded when the fund liability is incurred, if measurable. -15- 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

EXHIBIT A-6 (Continued) 

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of sales and use and property taxes. Year-end accrual of sales and use tax revenue is based upon June and prior months' sales and use taxes collected during July and August of the following year. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State of Louisiana (the State) are recognized as revenue primarily as received except at year end when they are accrued for a period not exceeding 60 days. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Generally, investment earnings are recorded as earned since they are measurable and available. Grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the grant and, accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenue until earned. The Proprietary Fund Type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) consists solely of retained earnings. The Proprietary Fund Type operating statement presents increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets. "/'he accrual basis of accounting is utilized by the Proprietary Fund Type. Under this basis of accounting revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when the related liability is incurred. Under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and O/her Governmental Entities That Use Prop;qetar), Fund AccounthJg, the School System has elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board guidance issued subsequent to November 30 1989. 
Effective July 1, 1998, the School System adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASBS) No. 32, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans." GASBS No. 32 was issued in response to a change in Internal Revenue Code Section 457 on August 20, 1996. This Code Section now requires that all assets and income of the deferred compensation plans established under the provisions of this Code Section must be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Existing plans were required to comply with this requirement by January 1, 1999; the School System amended its plan effective July 1, 1998. The School System is no longer required to present these assets within the Agency Fund in its financial statements. As a result of compliance with this pronouncement, the assets and related liabilities of the deferred compensation plans which totaled $4,018,352 at June 30, 1998 have been removed from the School System's financial statements. There was no effect on income or equity for the year ended June 30, 1999. Use ofEstlmates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. EstJmales also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

-16- 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

EXHIBIT A-6 (Continued) 

Budget and Budgetary Accounting - Under Louisiana Revised Statutes 17:88 and 39:1301-1314, the Sehool Board adopts an annual budget of expected revenues and probable expenditures for the General Fund and two of its Special Revenue Funds (the Adult Education and Community Education Funds). ]'he budgetary process includes public notice of the proposed budget, public inspection of the proposed budget, and public hearings on the budget. The budget is adopted and submitted to the State Department of Education no later than September 15 each year. Once a budget is approved by the State Department of Education, it can be amended at the function level at the discretion of management unless it becomes evident that receipts or disbursements will vary substantially from those budgeted. Then, the School Board shall prepare and adopt an anaended budget. 
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund and two Special Revenue Funds (the Adult Education and Community Education Funds). Budgetary control is exercised at the revenue and expenditure function level. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for the other Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects funds since their expenditures are controlled by contractual arrangements. Budgeted amounts reflected in the accompanying general purpose financial statements for the General Fund were adopted by the School Board on August 5, 1998, and include amendments, none of a significant nature, made through January 13, 1999. Special Revenue Funds budgets were adopted by the School Board on September 9, 1998. ]'here were no amendments to the Special Revenue Funds budget for the current fiscal year. The School System's budget includes encumbered amounts. Accordingly, the budgetary basis expenditure data reflected in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual - General and Special Revenue Fund Types (Exhibit A-3) includes encumbrances and, thus, differs from the expenditure data reflected in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types and Discretely Presented Component Unit (Exhibit A-2) by the amount of the net change in encumbrances outstanding at year end. The General Fund represents the only budgeted fund with encumbrances outstanding at year-end. A reconciliation of the differences between actual data and amounts on a budgetary basis is presented below: 
Excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses (budgetary basis) To reverse June 30, 1999 encumbrances recorded as expenditures on the budgetary basis To add back prior year's encumbrances paid in 1999 but not recorded as expenditures in 1999 

General Fund Special Revenue Funds $ 695,514 $ 274,506 2,719,415 (4,749,352) Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses (GAAP basis) $ (1,334,423) $ 274,506 

-17- 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

EXHIBIT A-6 (Continued) 
Eneunzbrances - Commitments related to unperfonued executory contracts for goods or services, such as outstanding purchase orders and uncompleted contracts, are recorded as encumbrances in order to reserve the applicable portion of the appropriation. Appropriations are valid for the year for which made, and any part of such appropriation which is not encumbered or expended lapses at the end of the year. Encmnbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances since they represent authority for expenditure in the subsequent year. Encumbrances do not constitute GAAP expenditures or liabilities. As materials are subsequently received, liabilities are recorded, and the related encumbrances are eliminated. Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School Lunch Enterprise Fund considers all short-term, highly liquid investments (including certificates of deposit) with original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Investments - Investments are stated at fair value Inventories - The School Lunch Enterprise Fund inventories consist of purchased food and supplies and commodities received as donations through the federal school lunch program. Such inventories are priced at cost (except for commodities received as donations which are priced using the USDA price list for commodities) on a first-in, first-out basis. Until donated commodities are consumed, they are reported as deferred revenues. Land, Buildings attd Equipment, Net - General fixed assets which are purchased are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost. Actual historical cost data was not available for buildings and improvements acquired or constructed prior to 1975. In those cases where it was not feasible to determine the actual cost, the buildings and improvements were valued at estimated historical cost by using price indices. General fixed assets which are donated are recorded at their fair market value on the date received. No depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets. Fixed assets associated with the activities of the School Lunch Enterprise Fund are recorded as assets of that fund and consist primarily of equipment. Depreciation of such assets is computed on the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of 12 years. Purchased fixed assets of the School Lunch Enterprise Fund are stated at cost or estimated historical cost, less accumulated depreciation of $4,573,581 at June 30 1999. Compensated Absences A. Vacation and Sick Leave - All fun-time employees of the School System are permitted to accrue sick pay (sick leave). Since fiscal year 1994, vacation days (annual leave) accrued in one fiscal year are to be used by the end of the same fiscal year unless the Administrative Department head determines thai the work assignment of the employee requesting the annual leave is such that the employee should not take annual leave during that particular fiscal year, and this carryover is approved by the Superintendent. Annual leave and sick leave may accrue to an unlimited number of days. Upon termination of employment, the employee is paid for all annual leave accrued prior to fiscal year 1994 at 1994 daily salary rates and post 1994 accrued annual leave approved by the Administrative 

-18- 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

EXHIBIT A-6 (Continued) 

B 

Department head at current daily salary 1ates and accrued sick leave up to a maximum of 25 days at current daily salary rates. Annual and sick leave liabilities are recorded as an expense when incurred in the School Lunch Enterprise Fund. In the governmental funds, only that portion which is expected to be liquidated within one year with expendable available financial resources is accrued at year-end. The remainder of the accrued liability which is applicable to Governmental Fund Types is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Only that portion of accumulated sick leave which is vested is accnled. The amount of accumulated vacation and accumulated vested sick leave at June 30, 1999 applicable to Governmental Fund Types was $15,988,133, none of which met the condition for accrual in the Governmental Fund Types; hence, the entire amount is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Sabbatical Leave - Any employee with a teaching certifcate is entitled, subject to approval, to one semester of sabbatical leave after three or more years of continuous service or two semesters of sabbatical leave after six or more years of continuous service. Sabbatical leaves may be granted for rest and recuperation or professional and cultural improvement and must be approved by the School Board. Unused sabbatical leave may be carried forward to periods subsequent to that in which it is earned. Sabbatical leave does not vest. Accumulated sabbatical leave for which payment is probable is accrued. That portion of accumulated sabbatical leave which is expected to be liquidated within one year with expendable available financia resources is accrued in the Governmental Fund Types, and the remainder is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. The amount of accumulated sabbatical leave at June 30, 1999 for which payment is probable was $37,598,341, none of which met the condition for accrual in the Governmental Fund Types; hence, the entire amount is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Total Columns on Combined Statements - Total columns on the combined general purpose financial statements are captioned "Memorandum only" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financia analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of operations and cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation, lnterfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. New Accounting Pronouncements - The GASB has issued GASBS No. 34, "Basic Financial Statements," in June 1999. Effective for fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, GASB Statement No. 34 establishes new financial reporting requirements for both state and local governments. When implemented, it will create new information and will restructure much of the information that governments have presented in the past GASB Statement No. 34 requires the School System to significantly change the way it reports its financial data. ]'he most significant change will be that the School System will report financial information for all governmental fund type accounting utilizing the full accrual method of accounting as opposed to the modified accrual method currently used. 
-19- 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1999 

EXHIBIT A-6 (Continued) 

2. CASI! AND INVESTMENTS 
Deposits - In accordance with Louisiana Statutes, the School System maintains deposits at those depository banks authorized by the School Board. All such depositories are members of the Federal Reserve System. Louisiana Statutes require that all School System deposits be protected by insurance or collateral. The market wdue of collateral pledged must equal 100% of the deposits not covered by insurance. At June 30, 1999, the carrying amount of the School System's (primary government only) deposits was $43,701,302, and the bank balance was $45,015,722. The School System's bank balance is categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the School System at year end. Category 1 includes insured or collatcralized cash with securities held by the School System or by its agent in the School System's name. Category 2 includes collateralized cash with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the School System's name. Category 3 includes uncollaleralizcd cash, including any bank balance that is collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust department or agent but not in the School System's name. 
Bank balance Cash Investments 

Category 
$26,710,665 $ - 3 Total $18,305,057 $45,015,722 

Cash balances of the School System's funds are pooled and invested to the extent possible in authorized investments. Interest earned on invested cash is distributed to the various funds on the basis of the actual invested cash balances of the participating funds during the year. The School System may invest idle funds as authorized by Louisiana Statutes, as follows (a) Direct United States Treasury obligations, the principal and interest of which are fully guaranteed by the govcrument of the United States. (b) United States government agency obligations, the principal and interest of which are fully guaranteed by the government of the United States, or United States government obligations, the principal and interest of which are guaranteed by any United States government agency. (c) Direct security repurchase agreements of any federal book entry only securities enumerated in paragraphs (a) and (b). 
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EXHIBIT A-6 (Continued) 

(d) Time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana and national banks having their principal office in the state of Louisiana. (e) Mutual or trust funds, which are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under tile Security Act of 1933 and the Investment Act of 1940 and which have underlying investments consisting solely of and limited to securities of the United States government or its agencies. The School System's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the School System or its agent in the School System's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the eounterparty's trust department or agent in the School System's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the School System's nalrle, Balances at June 30, 1999 were as follows Securities Type U. S. Government Total deposits Total cash and investments 
3. GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

Credit Risk Category 2 Carrying Value $68,583,298 $ - $ - $ 68,583,298 43,701,302 

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows: Balance July 1, t998 Additions Deletions Land and improvements Buildings and improvements Equipment Tota 
$ 15,616,009 236,659,881 36,881,279 $ 1,382,670 6,072,388 7,635,997 $ 3,722,128 

$112,284.600 

Balance June 30,1999 
$ 16,998,679 242,732,269 40.795.148 

$289,157,169 $15,091,055 $3,722,128 $300,526,096 
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4. PROPERTY TAX Property tax is due and becomes an enforceable lien on properly on the first day of the month following the filing of the tax rolls by the assessor with the Louisiana Tax Commission (usually December 1). The tax is delinquent thirty days after the due date. The property tax assessment for fiscal 1999 was formally levied on November 15, 1998 based on property values determined by the Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office. All land and residential improvements are assessed at 10% of its fair market value and other property at 15% of its market value. The tax is billed and collected by the Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office which receives certain millage for its services. Most of the property taxes are received by the School System in the month of January; however, delinquent property taxes are received throughout the year and arc recognized as revenue primarily when they are received except at year-end when they are accrued for a period not exceeding 60 days. Property tax is assessed for maintenance and operation for the School System as follows: No. of Mills Maintenance and Operation Constitutionally authorized 5. SALES AND USE TAX 
11.00 2.91 

For the year ended June 30, 1999, a 4.75% local sales and use tax was levied and collected within Jefferson Parish by the Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office of which 2% was received by the School System and dedicated for the following purposes: 1/2% (approved May 3, 1966) for teachers' salaries and operating expenses 1/2% (approved October 5, 1954 and January 12, 1971) for debt service purposes, for making capital improvements and/or for operating expenses (This represents 50% of a 1% tax levied by the Parish and dedicated to the School System.) 1/4% (approved June 28, 1980) for making capital improvements, with authority to issue additional bonds for such purpose, and paying the related maintenance and operating expenses 1/4% (approved June 28, 1980) for increasing salaries and fringe benefits of school teachers and other employees 1/2% (approved October 3, 1992) for increasing salaries and benefits of school teachers and other employees, establishing guidance programs, payment of debt service, and instruction and maintenance expense 6. ISSUANCE OF BONDS On March 1, 1999, the School System issued $22,000,000 in Ad Valorem Tax Bonds. The Bonds mature serially through 2008 and bear interest at rates ranging from 3.7% to 6.0%. The Ad Valorem Bonds require principal and interest payments on September 1 and March 1 of each year beginning September 1, 1999, and until they mature on March 1,2008. The bonds were issued for the purpose of improving existing public school buildings and paying the cost of issuance of the bonds. 
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EXHIBIT A-6 (Continued) 

The bonds are secured by and payable from a special ad valorem tax of three mills. Of these three mills, two mills are authorized for capital projects, and one mill is authorized for maintaining and improving existing public school buildings including repair and replacement of roofs, and heating and air conditioning systems. The School System is authorized to impose and collect the tax in each of the years 1998 through 2007. 
GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT The following is a summary of changes in general long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 1999 (in thousands of dollars): Tax Bonds 
Balance at July 1, 1998 Bonds issued Bonds retired lnerease (decrease) in long-term portion of liability Balance at June 30. 1999 

Compensated Absences Claims and Judgments Ad Valorem Tax Bonds 1954 Sales Tax Bonds 1980 Sales Tax Bonds $ 37,192 $ 320 $ 2,840 $ 124,770 $ 39,439 $ 204,56 
16,394 $ 53,586 (70) $ 250 

22,000 (2,790) 22,000 (13,625) 16.324 $ 22,050 $117,115 $ 36,259 $ 229,260 IJonded debt at June 30, 1999 is comprised of the following serial bond issues 
Description Ad valorem tax bonds: $10,000,000 issue of 3/1/70 $22,000,000 issue of 3/1/99 Tota 1954 1/2~ sales tax bonds: $70,000,000 refunding issue of 6/17/92 $16,180,000 refunding issue of 111/94 $50,000,000 issue of 1/19/96 Tota 

Interest Rates 
6.00 3.70-.6.00 
5.20-6.25 3.80-4,45 4.75-6.00 

1980 1/4~ sales tax bonds: $53,645,264 refunding issue of 7/10/86, Series A 7.70-8.50 $33,380,000 refunding issue of 4/21/98 4.75-5.10 

Final Maturity Date Range of Annual Principal Payments From To Amount Outstanding 
3/01/00 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 3/01/08 2,005,000 2,935,000 22,000,000 
2/01/08 2/01/00 2/01/07 
3/01/06 3/01/10 
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395,000 4,425,000 1,660,000 

22.050.000 
9,995,000 67,120,000 5,480,000 4,280,000 4,425,000 45,570,000 117,115,000 

828,387 1,635,296 15,791,286 4,676,738 5,558,609 20,467,484 36,258,770 $ 175.423,770 
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Ad Valorem Tax Bonds - The ad valorem tax bonds are payable solely from, and secured by, a special tax imposed and collected annually in excess of all other taxes on all of the property subject to taxation within the territorial limits of School District No. 1 of the Parish of Jefferson, Louisiana. At June 30, 1999, there was $138,807 available in the debt service funds for servicing of these bonds. 195,11/2~ Sales Tax Bonds - The Series 1992 bonds, Series 1994 bonds and Series 1995 bonds are payable solely from, and secured by, an irrevocable pledge and dedication of the proceeds of the one-half percent (1/2%) sales and use tax authorized to be levied in the parish pursuant to elections held therein on October 5, 1954 and January 12, 1971. At June 30, 1999, $21,410,237 was available in the debt service funds for servicing of these bonds. 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax" Bonds - The Series 1998 and 1986A bonds are payable solely from, and secured by, an irrevocable pledge and dedication of the proceeds of a special one-fourth percent (1/4%) sales and use tax authorized to be levied in the parish pursuant to an election held therein on June 28, 1980. At June 30, 1999, $11,952,948 was available in the debt service funds for servicing of these bonds. The annual debt service requirements (including interest of $106,373,207) to amortize all of the Schoo System's outstanding bonds as of June 30, 1999 are as follows: Year Ending June 30, 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005-2009 2010 Tota 

Ad Valorem Tax Bonds $ 3,028,823 $ 2,955,523 2,929,223 2,931,729 2,956,074 11,669,223 

1954 Sales Tax Bonds 14,754,502 $ 14,761,253 14,763,443 14,763,560 14,768,675 63,458,700 26,336,250 

1980 Sales Tax Bonds Total 8,330,000 8,330,000 8,330,000 8,330,000 8,340,000 41,714,999 8,345,000 
$ 26,113,325 26,046,776 26,022,666 26,025,289 26,064,749 116,842,922 34,681,250 

$26,470,595 $163,606,383 $ 91,719,999 $281,796,977 There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. As of June 30 1999, the School System was in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. 
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The defeased bonds outstanding at June 30, 1999 are as follows 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bonds: $11,800,000 Series 1982C $32,250,000 Series 1983AB $15,000,000 Series 1983D $64.625.000 Series 1986A 
1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bonds $45,000,000 Series 1981B $53,645,264 Series 1986A 
TOTAL 
INI)IVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 

$ 4,135,000 9,060,000 14,920,000 64,625,000 92,740,000 
7,850,000 5.765.089 13,615,089 $106,355,089 

Formal budgetary appropriations are adopted for the General Fund and two Special Revenue Funds. Expenditures are budgeted at the function level, which is the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations. During fiscal year 1999, the General Fund expenditures for supporting services exceeded appropriations by $863,814; however, total revenues for the General Fund exceeded those amounts budgeted by $3,601,965. The Community Education Fund expenditures for instruction and non- instruction services exceeded appropriations by $71,719 and $226,267, respectively; however, total revenues for the Community Education Fund exceeded those amounts budgeted by $453,847. Additionally during fiscal year 1999, the Adult Education Fund expenditures for instruction exceeded appropriations by $30,387. ttowever, total revenues for the Adult Education Fund exceeded those amounts budgeted by $118.834. 
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lnterl'und ]'~.eceivables and Payables Individual fund interfund receivables and payables as of June 30, 1999 were as follows 
Genera Fund 
Special Revenue: Elemel)tary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title 1) Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title II1) Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title VII) Individuals with Disabilities Education Act of 1990 - Part B Vocational Education Job Training Partnership Act Education for Economic Security Act Title II Indian Education Act Drug Free Schools and Communities Emergency lnmfigration Act Title XIX School Nurse Child Care and Development Block Grant Adul( Education Community Education S~ate PI-ograms Tots Debt Service: 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 
Capital Projects Capital Sales Tax 
Enterprise - School Lunch 
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Interfund Receivables $13,171,577 
1,861 156,790 2,157 104,081 390 2,544 47,238 407 
309 
199,387 515,164 
698,930 689,355 

Inte~und Payables $ 228,868 
2,891,827 456,374 61,384 2,354,249 391,585 20,925 109,830 5,126 526,035 50,701 26,008 352,612 40,039 201,015 4.652.g19 12,140,529 
697,764 698,930 691,599 689,355 1,388,285 2,777,648 

16,742 1,400,363 1.417,105 
115,882 47.265 163,147 1,181,939 $16,492,131 $16,492,131 
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Operating Transfers by Fund Type - Primary Government A sunm~ary of operating transfers by fund type for the year ended June 30, 1999 is as follows 
General Fund Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds 

Transfers To or From 

Capital Projects Funds School Lunch Enterprise Fund 
Tota Svecial Revenue Funds General Fund Debt Service Funds General Fund Debt Service Funds Capital Projects Funds Total Capital Projects Funds General Fund Debt Service Funds Tota 
School Lunch Enterorise Fund General Fund 
TOTAl. OPERATING TRANSFERS 
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Operating Transfers In 
$ 382,044 

Operating Transfers Out 
$ 27,242 421,840 3,023,000 1.597.722 

382.044 5.069.804 
27.242 
421,840 1,388,285 7.208.719 9.018.844 
3,023,000 1,473,363 4.496.363 
1,597,722 

382.044 
1,388,285 1,473,363 2.861.648 
7.208,719 7,208,719 

$15,522,215 $15,522,215 
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Primary Gos'ernment/Component Unit Transfers Transfers between the primary government and its component unit at June 30, 1999 were as follows: Transfers Transfers In Out General Fund/Primary Goveramen Component Unit: The Jefferson Comnmnity Charter School Component Unit General Fund/Primmy Government 
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT/COMPONENT UNIT TRANSFERS 
9. RETIREMENT I'LANS 

$ 450,000 
$ 450.000 

$ 450,000 $ 450,000 
Substantially all employees of thc School System are required by State law to belong to retiremcnt plans administered by the Teachers' Retirement System (TRS) or the School Employees' Retirement System (SERS), both of which are administered on a statewide basis. Each plan issues a separate financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Those reports may be obtained by writing or calling the plan. Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana Post Office Box 94123 Baton P, ouge, Louisiana 70804-9123 (504) 925-6446 Disclosures relating to these plans follow: A. TEACttERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System Post Office Box 44516 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-4516 (504) 924-6484 
Plan Description - All teachers, administrators, and school lunch employees of the School System are covered by defined benefit contributory pension plans administered and controlled by a separate Board of Trustees. The Board of Trastees administers plans which are cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement systems. All teachers, administrators, and school lunch employees are eligible 1o participate in the TRS plans. Teachers and administrators belong 1o the Teachers' Regular Plan, and school lunch employees belong to the Teachers' Plan B plan. Benefits are established by State statute. 

- 28 - 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

EXHIBIT A-6 (Continued) 
TRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Death and disability benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Normal retirement is at age 60 with 10 years of service or 20 years of service regardless of age for the Teachers' Regular plan members. For the Teachers' Plan B plan members, normal retirement is at any age with 30 or more years of creditable service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of creditable service, and at age 60 with at least 10 years of creditable service. Retirement benefits are based upon the following formula percentages: Years of Service lO 20 25 30 20 

Minimum Age 60 Any age 55 Any age 65 
Teachers' Regular Teachers' Plan B 0%-3.0% per year 0%-3.0% per year 0%-3.0% per year 0%-3.0% per year 0%-3.0% per year The percentage formula is applied to the average of the highest three successive annual salaries. The benefit is payable for life with eight available annuity payment plans. The plans also provide various death and disability benefits, whereby the disabled employee or surviving spouse is entitled to receive amounts deten~ained as defined by the plan. Contributions Required and Made - Covered employees and the School System are required by State statute to contribute fixed percentages of employees' gross earnings to the pension plans. Current contribution rates for the plans are as follows: 

Teachers' Regular Teachers' Plan B 
Employee 8.00% 5.00% 

Employer 16.5% 16.5% The School System's contributions to TRS for the years ended June 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $27,787,811, $26,916,756 and $24,353,218, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. B. SCHOOL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
1. Plan Description - Employees who are not teachers, administrators, or school lunch employees are covered by defined benefit contributory pension plans administered and controlled on a statewidc basis by a separate Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees administers this plan which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system. 
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All employees, other than teachers, administrators, and school lunch employees, are eligible to participate in the SERS. Benefits are established by State statute, SERS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Death and disability benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Normal retirement is at any age with 30 or more years of creditable service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of creditable service, and at age 60 with at least 10 years of creditable service. The maximum retirement and disability benefit is an anaount equal to 2 I/2% of the average compensation for the three highest consecutive years of credited service, multiplied by the number of years of service, plus a supplementary allowance of $2.00 per month for each month of service. The plan also provides various death benefits, whereby the disabled employee or surviving spouse is entitled to receive amounts determined as dcfined by the plan. 2. Contributions Required and Made - Covered employees and the School System are required by State statute to contribute fixed percentages of employees' gross earnings to the pension plans. Current contribution rates for the plans are 6.35% for participating employees and 6.00% for the School System. 
The School System's contributions to SERS for the years ended June 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $614,597, $605,809 and $573,107, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 10. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN The School System offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue (;ode Section 457. The plan, available to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years, up to 33.3% of annual gross earnings not to exceed $7,500. Participation in the plan is optional. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until ternlination, retirement, disability, death or in the event of an unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred undcr the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those anmunts, property or rights are held for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiarics. Investments are managed by the plan's trustee under one of six investment options, or a combination thereof. The choice of the investment option(s) is made by the participants. As discussed in Note 1, the School System adopted GASBS No. 32 in 1999; therefore the assets and liabilities of the deferred compensation plan are no longer recorded as an Agency Fund. 
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Claims and Judgments - The insurance companies which insured the School System for workers' compensation and bus driver accidents during the two years ended December 31, 1981 and for general liability and automobile/bus driver accidents during the two years ended April 30, 1992 subsequently went bankrupt. As a result, the School System became liable for the outstanding claims which were being paid by the insurance companies on behalf of the School System. Total outstanding claims and judgments, including the claims discussed above, approximated $446,140 at June 30, 1999, $250,000 of which is reported h~ the General Long-Term Debt Account Group and $196,140 of which is reported in the General Fund. 
Changes in the claims payable liability for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998 were as follows 
Claims payable, beginning of year 
Add: Changes in estimates Deduct: Claims payments 
Claims payable, end of year 

1999 t998 $ 517,600 $ 492,600 25,000 71,460 
$446,140 $517,600 Workers' Compeltsation Claims - Effeclive May 1, 1989, the School System adopted a self-insured workers' compensation plan administered by a service agent. Under the plan, the School System is self-insured for each individual claim during a calendar year up to $200,000 with commercial insurance for claims in excess of that amount. The School System has determined, through an analysis of historical expcrience, the adequacy of the liability necessary to cover all losses and claims, both incurred and reported and incun'ed but not reported (IBNR), under its workers' compensation program. The liability is recorded in the General Fund at June 30. 1999. Changes in the workers' compensation claims payable liability for the years endcd June 30, 1999 and 1998 were as follows: 

Workers' compensation claims payable, beginning of year Add: Claims and changes in estimates Deduct: Claims payments Workcrs' compensation claims payable, end of year 

1999 $ 840.181 766,747 (730,345) $ 876,583 

1998 $ 834,497 1,026,853 (l,021,169) $ 840,181 
Other Risk Management - The School System continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including general liability, automobile, and employee health insurance. There have been no significant changes in these insurance coverage amounts. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
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Federal and State Programs - Minimum foundation funding received from the State Department of Education is based primarily upon information concerning strident enrollment at the School System's schools which is compiled by the School System and supplied to the State Department of Education. Federal funding for the School Lunch Program is based primarily upon the number and types of meals served and on user charges as reported to the United States Department of Agriculture. Federal and State funding received related to various grant programs are based upon periodic reports detailing reimbursable expenditures made in compliance with program guidelines to the grantor agencies. Contingent Liabilities - Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally by federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already colJected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be deternaincd at this time although the School Systeur expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 12. RESERVATIONS AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUND BALANCES Reservations of fund balances are established to indicate that portion of the fund balance which is not appropriable for expenditure or is legally segregated for a specific future use. Designations of fund balances represent tentative plans for financial resource utilization in a future period. The nature and purpose of the reserves and designations are as follows Reserved for Encumbrances - This reserve was established for outstanding purchase orders and other commitments for unperformed contracts for goods and services which the School System intends to honor Reserved for Prepaid Items - This reserve was established as an offset against the asset, prepaid items because it does not constitute an available spendable resource of the General Fund. Reserved for Debt Service. This reserve represents the amounts reserved for payment of principal and interest maturing in future years. Reserved for Specific Programs - This reserve represents amounts set aside primarily for in-school suspension programs. Designated for Capital Additions and Improvements - The proceeds of various bond issues, a portion of the undedicated sales tax revenue designated by the Board, and the interest earned on the inveslment thereof are designated for capital projects in the Sales Tax Fund of the Capital Projects Fund to the extent that such amount has not been reserved for encumbrances. Deslgnatedfor Contingencies - The first two percent of sales tax growth beyond that adopted in the annua budget has been designated by the Board for contingencies and can only be used with a 2/3 vote of the Board. 
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Tile reserved and unreserved components of fund balances at June 30, 1999, consist of the following 
Reserved for: Encumbrances Prepaid items Debt service Specific programs Total 

General Fund 
$ 2,719,415 2,144,513 
4,863,928 Unreserved - designated for: Capital additions and improvenlents Contingencies 287,381 Tota Unreserved - undesignated 
287,381 

Special Revenue 

4,662,960 $ 3,299,672 

Debt Service 
$33.501.992 
33,501,992 

Capital Projects Tota 
$ 8,692,074 $ 
058.881 9,750,955 
49,021,409 
49.021.409 

11,411,489 2,144,513 33,501,992 1.058,881 48.116.875 
49,021,409 287,381 49,308,790 
7,962,632 Total fund balance $ 9,814,269 $ 3,299,672 $ 33,501,992 $ 58,772,364 $105,388,297 On the budgetary basis, the reserved and unreserved components of the General Fund fund balance at June 30 1999, consist of the following: Reserved for: Encumbrances Prepaid items Total Unreserved - undesignated Total fund balance on budgetary basis 

$2,719,415 2,144,513 4,863,928 2,230,926 
$ 7,094,854 The teachers of Jefferson Parish are unionized. In September 1997, the Board and the Jefferson Federation of Teachers (the Union) agreed to a new three year contract ending June 30, 2000. This contract calls for future incrcases to teachers' salaries and benefits of approximately $9 million over a three year period. Approximately $3.8 million were expended during fiscal 1999 for all school-based certified personnel. In addition, a one-time payment of approximately $1.1 million was granted to all noncerlified employees. 

-33 - 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

EXHIBIT A-6 (Continued) 

13. POSTEMPLOYMENTItEALTH CARE BENEFITS In accordance with State statutes, the School System provides certain continuing health care benefits for its retired employees. Substantially all of the School System's employees become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the School System, Currently, 3,446 retirees are eligible to participate in these benefits. These benefits for retirees are provided through an insurance company whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the retirees and by the School System. During fiscal year 1999, the School System contributed 72% of the total premium for health care insurance provided to the retirees. The School System recognizes the cost of providing these benefits (the School System's portion of premiums) as an expenditure on a pay-as-you-go basis when the monthly premiums are due. The School System's net cost of providing all health care benefits to the approximately 5,175 active and 1,974 retired participating employees amounted to $12,481,151 for 1999. For 1999, the School System's cost of premiums paid for retirees totaled $5,393,156. 14. COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES Cash In accordance with Louisiana statutes, the School System maintains deposits at those depository banks authorized by the School Board. All such depositories are members of the Federal Reserve System. ].ouisiana statutes require that all School System deposits be protected by insurance or collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal 100% of the deposits not covered by insurance. Bank balances of $141,858 at June 30, 1999 were insured or collateralized by securities held by the School System or its agent in the School System's name. The carrying amount of the deposits were $146,764. General Fixed Assets A sunanaary of changes in general fixed assets follows 
Land and improvements Equipment Tota Other Revenues 

hell, nee July 1, 1998 Additions Deletions $ 31,620 $- $ 123,618 3,647 
Belence June 30, t999 $ 31,620 127.265 $155,238 $ 3,647 $ $158,885 

Other revenues of $279,008 included on the combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance primarily represent donations from the community. 
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GENERALFUND General Fund is the principal operating fund of the School System and receives most of the revenues dcrived by the School System from local (principally property and sales taxes) and State sources. Genera Fund expenditures represent the costs of general School System operations and include functional categories of instruction, supporting services and non-instruction. The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources and expenditures except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
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GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COMPARED TO BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

Local sources; Property taxes: Constitutional Special maintenance Sheriffs contribution to teachers' retirement Sales and use taxes Tuition and other Investment income Rent and royalties ttospitalization Other 
Total State sources Equalization Revenue sharing Grants in aid Professional improvement program Transportation Tota Federal sources: Recovery of indirect costs Restricted grants in aid: Other Total 
TOTAL REVENUES 

Actual on Budgetary Basis 
$ 4,436,853 16,709,326 1,539,259 110,019,906 760,113 870,707 43,562 209,749 289,349 
134,878,824 
127,231,665 1,979,280 1,750,090 2,768,151 1,419,632 135,148,818 
636,813 332.933 969.746 

Revised Budget 
$ 4,400,098 13,604,795 1,466,904 109,228,661 899,000 850,000 240,000 188,000 150,000 
131,027,458 
127,231,665 2,064,613 2,030,026 2,609,874 1,487,787 135,423,965 
578,000 366.000 944,000 

Variance - Favorable (Unfavorable) 
$ 36,755 3,104,531 72,355 791,245 (138,887) 20,707 (196,438) 21,749 139,349 
3,851,366 
(85,333) (279,936) 158,277 (68,155) (275,147) 
58,813 (33,067) 25.746 

$270,997,388 $267,395,423 $ 3,601,965 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

SCHEDULE B-2 Page 1 of 3 

INSTRIJCTION: Regular Programs: Salaries and benefits Materials and supplies Equipment Other Tola Special Prograrns: Salaries an~ benefits Materials and supplies Equipment Other Total Vocational Programs: Salaries and benefits Materials and supplies Other Total Other Instructional Programs: Salaries and benefits Materials and supplies Other qota Adult Continuing Education Progran3: Salaries and benefits 3"ota/ Total Instruction SUPPORTING SERVICES For Studeots: Salaries and benefits Materials and supplies Equipment Other 
For Instructional Staff: Salaries and benefits Materials and supplies Equipment Olher 

Actual on Budgetary Basis 
$102,399,134 3,629,988 291,839 1,030,211 

- 37 - 

07,351,172 
58,039,51l 447,729 9,377 73.140 58,569,357 
5,123,956 
5.123.992 
3,742,375 26,556 2,478 
4,37 4,371 74.820.70 
9,837,297 1,852 40,287 67.648 9,947,084 
4A77~48 395,428 14,009 64,535 4,98Lo2o 

Revised Budget 
$ 101,840,149 6,680,105 329,309 1,141,233 09.990.796 
57,290,237 196,125 17,271 74.025 57.577.658 
5,028,844 63,812 1.000 5,093,656 
3,624,967 36,841 3.800 3~665,608 
7.843 7.843 76,335,56 
9,777,774 17,300 85,000 77,296 9,957,370 
4,242,217 432,572 18,000 101.408 4.794.197 

Variance - Favorable (Unfavorable) 
$ (558,985) 3,050,117 37,470 111.022 2.639.624 
(749,274) (251,604) 7,894 885 (992,099) 
(95,112) 63,812 964 
(117,408) 10,285 1,322 
3.472 3A72 ,514,860 
(59,52 15,44 44,71 9.64 0.286 
(234,831) 37,144 3,991 36.873 (156,823) (Continucd) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1999 

SCHEDULE B-2 Page 2 of 3 

SUPPORqlNG SERVICES - continued General Administration: Salaries and benefits Materials and supplies Tax collection fees Other Total School Administration: Salaries and benefits Materials and supplies Other Total Business Services: Salaries and benefits Materials and supplies Equipment Other Tota Operations Main(enance Services: Salaries and benefits Malerials and supplies Equipment Utilities Othc= Total Pupil Transportafion Services: Salaries and benefits Materials and supplies Equipment Other Total Central Activity Services: Salaries and benefits Materials and supplies Equipmcrtt Other 
Total Supporting Services 

-38- 

Actual on Budgetary Basis 
S 1,361,431 37,231 11,500,951 1,716,465 4,616,078 
8,734,995 47,546 993.901 9.776.442 
727,721 112,750 119,064 040.657 3.000.192 
9,003,752 1,221,380 23,620 5,252,275 5.026,179 
13,120,215 18,831 15,461 1,267,124 14.421.63 
1,761,748 65,885 156,804 1,110,854 3,095,29 90,334,944 

Revised Budget 

4,605,144 
8,319,409 49,364 1,029,334 19,398,107 
1,735,763 103,666 138,822 1,006.140 2,984,39 
8,917,241 1,21g,100 38,003 4,639,069 4.831.997 9.644.410 
3,214,030 14,300 22,719 1.406.071 4.657.120 
,972,622 69,496 201,358 ,186,915 3,430,39 89.471.130 

Variance - Favorable (Unfavorable) 
3,825 4,294 64,818 45.765 (10,934) 
(415,586) 1,818 35.433 
8,042 (9,084) 19,758 (34,517) 
(86,511) 0,280) 14,383 (613,206) (194,182) 
93,815 (4,531 7,258 138,947 235.489 
210,874 3,611 44,554 76.061 335.100 (863,814) (Continued) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1999 

SCHEDULE B-2 Page 3 of 3 

NON-INSTRUCTION Community Services: Salaries and benefits Other Total Tola] non-Jnstruclion TOTAL INSTRUCTION, SUPPORTING SERVICES AND NON-INSTRUCTION 

-39- 

Actual on Budgetary Basis 
8,469 8,469 8.469 
$265,164,114 

Revised Budget 
998 40.000 40,998 40.998 

$ 265.847.689 

Variance- Favorable (Unfavorable) 
998 31,531 32,529 32,529 

$ 683,575 
(Concluded) 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS Special Revenue Funds are used to account for funds received from the other governmental agencies thal are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes. These funds also account for receipt and expenditure of resources transferred from the General Fund when these funds are inadequate to finance the specified activities. Activities included within these funds are as follows: ESEA (Title I) (l) ESEA (Title 1II) (2) ESEA (Title V/l) (3) IDEA Part B (4) Vocational Education (5) ~TPA (6) EESA Title II (7) Indian Education Act (8) Drug Free Schools and Communities (9) Emergency Immigration Act (10) Title XIX - School Nurse (11) Child Care and Development Block Grant (12) AduJt Education (13) Community Education (14) State Programs (15) (1) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for educationally disadvantaged children (Title I), children of migrant agriculture workers, and for the improvement of student achievement and quality of education (Title 2). (2) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for developmeut and implementation of comprehensive reform plans to improve the teachings and learning of all children (Project Goals 2000) and to support the development and implementation of systematic technology plans (Technology Literary Challenge). (3) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for carrying out bilingual education (Project S.T.A.R.). (4) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for children with disabilities under P.L 101-476. (5) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for purposes of vocational education, guidance, and counseling. (6) Used to account for funds allocated to programs for providing job training and related assistance to economically disadvantaged individuals and others who face significant employment barriers. (7) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for improving the skills of teachers and instruction in mathematics, science, foreign languages and computer science. (s) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs designed to meet the specia educational or culturally related academic needs of Indian children. 
- 40 - 



(9) Used to account on a project basis for funds granted by P.L. 99-570 to help implement drug and alcohol abuse prevention and education programs. (10) Used to account on a project basis for funds granted by P.L. 98-511 for programs for immigrant children enrolled in elementary and secondary schools. (11) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to providing schools with nurses. (12) Used to account for assistance to low-income families with child care services (13) Used to account for continuing education programs designed to assist adults in obtaining their high school diploma equivalency. (14) Used to account for a wide variety of informal leisure learning classes and activities for Jefferson Parish residents. (15) Used to account for miscellaneous State grant programs 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET JUNE 30. 1999 

ASSETS Cash and investments Accounts receivable Due from other funds 

Federal Programs ~qementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title I) 

$ 1,861 Due from other governmental units 3,284,469 TOTAl. ASSETS $3,286,330 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE LIABILITIES: Accounts payable $ 393,958 

I-lementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title Ill) 

$ 419 156,790 299,165 $456.374 

I-lementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title VII) 

$ 2,157 59,227 $61,384 

Due to other funds 2,891,827 $456,374 $61,384 Due to other governmental units Deferred revenue Total liabilities 
FUND BALANCE Unrese~wed: Undesignated 

545 3,286,330 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ 3,286,330 

- 42 - 

456,374 61,384 

$456,374 $61,384 



SCHEDULE B-3 Page 1 of 2 

inolvicluals with Disabilities Education Act of 1990- Vocationa Part B Education 
$1,059,437 
104,081 $ 390 1,190,877 393,019 $2,354,395 

$2,354,249 146 

$393,409 

Job Training Partnership Act 

$ 2,544 18,899 $21,443 

Education for Economic Security Act Title II 

$ 47,238 76,754 $123,992 
$ 10,984 $ 391,585 $ 20,925 109,830 

1,824 518 3,178 2,354,395 393,409 21,443 123,992 

$ 2,354,395 $ 393,409 $ 2|,443 $123,992 
- 43 - 

(Continued) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET JUNE 30, 1999 

ASSETS Cash and investments Accounts receivable Due fi-om other funds Due from other governmental units TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE LIABILITIES: Accounts payable Due to other funds Due to other governmental units Deferred revenue 
Total ]iabililies FUND BALANCE Unreserved: Undesignated TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Federal Programs Drug Free Indian Schools Emergency Education and Immigration Act Communities Act 
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$ 5,201 $ 5,201 
$ 407 551,425 $ 54,590 $551,832 $54,590 

$ 24,752 $ 5,126 526,035 
75 1.045 

$ 3,889 50,701 

5,201 551,832 54,590 

$ 5,201 $551,832 $54,590 



SCHEDULE B-3 Page 2 of 2 

Child Care and Title XIX Development Adult Community State School Nurse Block Grant Education Education Programs Tota 
$ 86,181 $216,874 $214,826 $1,874,943 315,904 309 135,429 3,398 

$5,158,552 460,683 199.387 
$ 8,610,813 777,006 515,164 918.362 6.990.815 $ 86,181 $352,612 $534,128 $1,874,943 $6,736,984 $16,893,798 

$ 26,008 
26.008 
60.173 

$352,612 
352.612 

$143,670 $ 281,524 40,039 201,015 
183,709 
350,419 

482,539 
1,392,404 

$ 8,013 $ 866,790 4,652,819 12,140,529 104,164 475.312 5,240,308 
1,496,676 

104,310 482,497 13,594,126 
3,299,672 

$ 86,181 $352,612 $534,128 $1,874,943 $6,736,984 $16,893,798 

- 45 - 
(Concluded) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESINFUNDBALANCES YEAR ENDED JUNE30,1999 

REVENUES: Federal sources Stale sources Tuition and other Total revenues EXPENDITURES (All eurren0 Instruction: Salaries and benefits Supplies OIher Total instruction Supporting services: Salaries and benefits Supplies Other Total supporting services Non-instruction: Conmmnity services: Salaries and benefits Supplies Other Total communily sezwices Other Total non-inslruc(ion Total expenditures EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) - net EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

Federa m-lementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title I) 
m-lementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title 11{) 

Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title VII) 
$14,195,183 $7,785,015 $205,901 
14,195,183 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 

6,056,497 1,182,977 999.839 8,239,313 2,326,733 1,111,112 1.675.608 5,113,453 
383,571 23,937 9,954 417,462 425.769 843,231 

7~785,015 
20,411 4,737,601 2,065,172 6.823,184 495,473 205,213 248,101 948,787 

13,097 13,097 

205.901 
128,390 9,500 8.429 146,319 6,882 113 6,995 
44,506 1,030 45,536 7,051 52,587 14,195,997 7,785,068 205,901 

(814) 
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894 (80) 814 
(53) 
53 
53 

$ 



SCHEDULE B-4 Page 1 of 2 

Programs Incllvlauals with Disabilities Education Act of 1990- Vocationa Part B Education 
Job Training Partnership Act 
Education for Economic Security Act Title II 

$ 3,700,258 $ 899,799 $ 150,630 $ 309,631 1,422 6,181 3.700.258 
454,307 471,065 923,225 1,848,597 1,705,959 6,724 40,157 1,752,840 

99.036 99.036 3.700A73 
(215) 
215 
215 

899.799 
86,937 596,318 683,255 
140,144 76,400 216.544 

899.799 

$ 
- 47 - 

152,052 
79,275 843 80,118 
48,793 2,896 22,789 74.478 

154,596 
(2,544) 
2,544 
2.544 

$ 

315,812 
405 61,514 25,262 87,181 
178,184 39,849 218,033 

10,598 10,598 315,812 

$ (Continued) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESINFUNDBALANCES YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1999 

REVENUES: Federal sources State sources Tuition and other Total revenues EXPENDITURES (All current) Instr~lctioll: Salaries and benefits Supplies Other Total instruction Supporting services: Salaries and benefits Supplies Other Total supporting services Non-instruction: COl nnlunily services; Salaries and benefits Supplies Other Total comnmnity services Other Total non-insti~action Total expenditures EXCESS (DEFICIFNCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTtIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total other fi~ancing sources (uses) - net EXCI';SS (I)EFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTItER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTIIER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

Federal 
Indian Education Act 

Drug Free Schools and Communities Emergency mmigration Act 
$ 36,136 $ 1,523,146 $ 159,472 1.489 

-48 - 

36,136 1,524,635 159,472 
21,446 2,535 6,511 30,492 1,456 1.855 3,311 

2,333 2,333 36,136 

203,730 140.420 344,150 977,063 123,963 1,101,026 
27.656 
27,656 51.888 79,544 1,524,720 
(85) 

5,446 26,523 5.154 37,123 73,223 2.044 75.267 
41.610 
41,610 5.472 47.082 159.472 

$ 



SCHEDULE B-4 Page 2 of 2 

Programs 
Title XIX School Nurse 

Child Care and Development Block Grant 
$ 296,007 $ 383.134 

Adult Education 
$ 502,910 469,213 117.913 

Community Education 
$ 124,089 3,149,538 

State Programs Tota 
$ 212,224 4,865,099 757.059 $ 30,483,535 5,334,312 4,033,602 296,007 383,134 1,090,036 3,273,627 5,834,382 39,851,449 

179,983 4,010 53,612 356,790 19,702 3.815 434,697 44,304 228,698 120,324 690,967 237,605 380,307 707,699 811,291 

237,605 

396 
396 

3.041 3.041 383.744 

299,207 1,274 4.562 305.043 
3.312 
3,312 627 3.939 1.016.681 

237,978 8,526 79,636 326,140 
1,889,743 944 33,326 1,924,013 11.062 1,935,075 3,072,506 

828,001 1,301,907 366,834 2,496,742 1,380,832 583,030 1,180,439 3.144.301 
5,350 
5,350 236 5.586 5,646,629 

8,685,972 8,843,272 5,424,132 22.953.376 
7,872,323 1,920,932 3,493,359 13,286,614 
2,395,748 24,881 44.310 2,464,939 630,210 3.095.149 39.335.139 

58,402 (610) 73,355 201,121 187,753 516,310 

58,402 1.771 $ 60.173 

610 
610 

73,385 201,121 277,034 1,191,283 

22,811 (381,964) 27,242 (382,044) (359,153) (354,802) 
(171,400) 1.668.076 161,508 3,138,164 $ 350,419 $1,392,404 $1,496,676 $ 3,299,672 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SCHEDULE B-5 SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL-ADULTEDUCATION FUND YEAR ENDEDJUNE30.1999 

REVENUES: Federal sources Stale sources Tuition and other Total revenues 
EXPENDITURES Instruction Supporting Total expenditures EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXI'ENDITURES 

Actual on Budgetary Basis 
$ 483,242 469,213 117,913 1,070,368 
694,940 302,043 996,983 
73,385 FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 277,034 FUND BALANCE AT END OF YF.AR $ 350,419 

- 50 - 

Revised Budget 
$ 395,136 452,898 103,500 951,534 
664,553 322.918 987,471 

Variance - Favorable (Unfavorable) 
$ 88,106 16,315 14.413 118,834 
(30,387) 20.875 (9,512) 

(35,937) 109,322 
277,034 
$ 241,097 $109,322 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SCHEDULE B-6 
SPECIAL. REVENUE FUNDS SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL - COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

REVENUES: Federal Tuition and other Total revenues 
EXPENDITURES Instruction Supporting Non-instruction 
Total expenditures EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENI)ITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAP, 

Actual on Budgetary Basis Revised Budget 
$ 124,089 3,149,538 $2,819,780 3,273,627 
811,291 326,140 1,935,075 3,072,506 
201,121 

2.819.780 
739,572 371,400 1.708.808 2,819,780 

1,191,283 1,191,283 
$1,392,404 

-51 - 

$1,191,283 

Variance - Favorable (Unfavorable) 
$ 124,089 329,758 453.847 
(71,719) 45,260 (226,267) (252,726) 
201.121 
$ 201.121 



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The School System maintains the following Debt Service Funds: Ad Valorem Tax Bond Sinking Fund is used to accumulate the proceeds ofad valorem taxes which are specifically dedicated for debt service, 1954 1/2~ and 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking Funds are used to accumulate that portion of the 1954 and 1980 sales and use tax required to meet the debt service requirements. Monthly deposits out of the proceeds of the sales and use tax are required to be made into these funds in an amount which will equal 1/6 of the interest falling due on the next interest payment date and 1/12 of the principal falling due on the next principal payment date. 1954 1/2~ and 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve Funds are used to accumulate that portion of the 1954 and 1980 sales and use tax which is set aside for the purpose of paying principal and interest on bonds payable. Monthly deposits of sales and use tax proceeds are required to be made into these funds until the required reserve has been established. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET JUNE 30. 1999 

ASSETS Cash and investments Property tax receivable Interest receivable Due from other funds 
TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE LIABIlJTIES: Accounts payable Due to other funds Total liabilities FUND BALANCE: Reservcd for debt service TOTAL LIABII.ITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Ad Valorem Tax Bond Sinking 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 
$ 127,842 $6,115,305 $15,916,369 10.965 76,313 12,080 698,930 
$ 138,807 $6,890,548 $15,928,449 

$ 138,807 
$ 138,807 
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$ 12,066 697,764 709.830 
6,180,718 
$6,890,548 

$ 698,930 698.930 
15,229,519 
$15,928,449 



SCHEDULE B-7 

1980 1/4~ 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Sales Tax Bond Sinking Bond Reserve Total 
$3,495,192 $9,143,545 $34,798,253 
689,355 5,810 10,965 94,203 1,388,285 $4,184,547 $ 9,149,355 $ 36,291,706 

$ 691,599 $ 689,355 $ 12.066 2,777,648 691,599 689,355 2,789,714 
3,492,948 
$4,184,547 

8,460,000 
$9,149,355 
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33,501,992 
$36,291,706 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 
REVENUES: Local sources: Property taxes Sales and use taxes Investment income Total revenues EXPENDITURES: Current supporting services Miscellaneous Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges Total expenditures 

Ad Valorem Tax Bond Sinking 
$ 65,288 110,214 175.502 
4,392 
2,790,000 129,300 2,923,692 

1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 
$ 9,200,000 44,622 $ 736,016 9,244,622 
21,884 
7,655,000 7.084,495 14,761,379 

736.016 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (2,748,190) (5,516,757) 736,016 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Proceeds from bond issuance Total other financing sources (uses) - net 
421,840 134.836 
556.676 

6,254,150 (730,764) (749,930) 
5,523,386 (749,930) EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTttER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTH ER FINANCING USES (2,191,514) 6,629 ( 13,914) EUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

2,330,321 6,174,089 15,243,433 
$ 138,807 
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$ 6,180,718 $15,229,519 



SCHEDULE B-8 

1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve Total 
$ 5,600,000 29,362 $ 447,629 5,629,362 

3,180,394 5.149.606 8,330,000 

447.629 
65,288 14,800,000 1,367,843 16,233,131 
26,276 
13,625,394 12,363,401 26,015,071 

(2,700,638) 447,629 (9,781,940) 
2,342,854 (691,599) (689,355) 

1,651,255 

9,018,844 (2,861,648) 
134.836 

(689,355) 6,292,032 
(1,049,383) (241,726) (3,489,908) 
4,542,331 8,701,726 36,991,900 
$ 3,492,948 $8,460,000 $ 33,501,992 
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CAPITAl, PROJECTS FUNDS Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. The School System maintains the following Capital Projects Funds: Capital Fund is used to account for that portion of the undedicated sales tax revenue which is designated by the School Board annually for capital additions and improvements and the proceeds of the 1999 Ad Valorem tax bonds for making capital improvements. 
Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the proceeds of the various 1954, 1980 and 1995 sales tax bonds issued from 1981 through 1995 and that portion of the sales tax approved June 28, 1980 (1/4 cent) for making capital improvements. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET JUNE 30, 1999 

SCHEDULE B-9 

ASSETS Cash and investments Receivables: Sales and use tax Interest Due from other funds TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE LIABILITIES: Accounts payable Retainages payable Due to other funds Total liabilities 
FUND BALANCE: Reserved for encumbrances Reserved for specific programs Unreserved - designated for capital additions and improvements Tolal fired balance TOTAI, LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

-58- 

Capital Sales Tax Tota 
$29,682,143 $27,560,736 $57,242,879 
1,357,499 171,149 16.742 $31,227,533 

203,949 3,550 1,561,448 174,699 1,400,363 1,417,105 $29,168,598 $60,396,131 

51,060 $ 1,407,477 2,083 115,882 47,265 169.025 1,454,742 
4,276,624 4,415,450 1,058,881 

$ 1,458,537 2,083 163.147 1,623,767 
8,692,074 1.058.881 

25,723,003 23,298,406 49,021,409 
31,058,508 27,713,856 58,772,364 
$31,227,533 $29,168,598 $60,396,131 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SCHEDULE B-10 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCES YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 
REVENUES: Local sources: Sales and use taxes Investment income Other Total revenues 
EXPENDITURES: Construction costs Architect fees Administrative and other Total expenditures 

Capital Sales Tax Tota 
$ 4,000,000 481,192 130,751 4,611,943 
1,622,111 1,274,787 414,781 3,311,679 

5,712,379 1,782,518 13.122 7,508,019 
15,303,692 667,081 216,264 16,187,037 

9,712,379 2,263,710 143,873 12,119,962 
16,925,803 1,941,868 631.045 19,498,716 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 1,300,264 (8,679,018) (7,378,754) OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): Opcrating transfers in Operating transfers out Proceeds from bond issuance Total other financing sources (uses) - net 

3,023,000 22,000,000 
25,023,000 

1,473,363 (7,208,719) 4,496,363 (7,208,719) 22.000.000 
(5,735,356) 19,287,644 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTttER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTIIER FINANCING USES 26,323,264 (14,414,374) 11,908,890 FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

4,735,244 42,128,230 46,863,474 
$31,058,508 $ 27,713,856 $ 58,772,364 
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AGENCY FUNDS Agency Funds are established to account for all monies held by the School System in an agency capacity. Disbursements are made only in accordance with the purpose for which assets are received. Activities included within these funds are as follows: School and Student Activity Funds (1) School Picture Fund (2) Stadium Fund (3) School System Event Fund (4) 
(1) Used to account for revenues and expenditures for individual school purchases and student body activities, including minor fund raising, field trips and special events. (2) Used to account for security deposits received from school photographers (3) Used to account for funds generated for the operation of the Yenni, Memptsas and Bonnabel Stadiums. (4) Used to account for the receipts and disbursements of employee athletic events 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SCHEDULE B-11 Page 1 of 2 
AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 
SCHOOL AND STUDENT ACTIVITY FUNDS ASSETS: Cash and investments LIABILITIES: Due to student groups Due lo schools Due to others TOTAl 
SCHOOL PICTURE FUND ASSETS: Cash and investments 
LIABILITIES: Due to photographers 1)uc to olber funds 
TOTAL STADIUM FUND ASSETS: Cash and investments LIABILITIFS: Due to stadium clubs 
SCHOOL SYSTEM EVENT FUND ASSETS: Cash and investments 
LIABILITIES: Due to participants 

Balance July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions Balance June 30 1999 
$3,710,738 $ 8,224,301 $ 8,234,715 $3,700,324 
$1,608,266 $ 260,630 $ 133,082 $1,735,814 2,101,218 7,946,189 8,083,483 1,963,924 1,254 17,482 18,150 586 $3,710,738 $ 8,224,301 $ 8,234,715 $3,700,324 
$ 45,075 $ 1,723 $ 6,075 $ 40,723 
$ 42,704 $ 1,723 $ 2,371 3,704 2,371 $ 40,723 
$ 45,075 $ 1,723 $ 6,075 $ 40,723 
$ 21,572 $ 87,784 $ 84,580 $ 24,776 
$ 21,572 $ 87,784 $ 84,580 $ 24,776 
$ 5,013 $ 2,771 $ 3,880 $ 3,904 
$ 5,013 $ 2,771 $ 3,880 $ 3,904 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SCHEDULE B-11 Page 2 of 2 
AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION FUND ASSETS: Cash and investments 

Balance July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions 
$4,018,352 $ $ 4,018,352 (1) $ 

LIABILITIES: Due to employees for deferred compensation $ 4,018,352 $ $ 4,018,352 (l) $ 

Balance June 30, 1999 

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS ASSETS: Cash and investments $ 7,800,750 $ 8,316,579 $12,347,602 $ 3,769,727 LIABILITIES: Due to student groups Due to schools Due to others Due to photographers Due to olhcr funds Due to stadium clubs Due to participants Due to employees for deferred compensation 
1,608,266 2,101,218 1,254 42,704 2,371 21,572 5,013 4,018,352 
$ 260,630 $ 133,082 7,946, ! 89 8,083,483 17,482 18,150 1,723 3,704 2,371 87,784 84,580 2,771 3,880 4,018,352 

$1,735,814 1,963,924 586 40.723 24,776 3,904 
$7,800,750 $ 8,316,579 $12,347,602 $3,769,727 

(1) Plan was amended effective July 1, 1998 to clarify that funds are held for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. As a result oflhe amendment, such funds are no longer considered Agency Funds. 
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GENERAL FIXED ASSET ACCOUNT GROUP General Fixed Asset Account Group is used to account for fixed assets used in Governmental Fund Type operations, rather than in governmental funds. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SCHEDULE B-12 
GENERAL FIXED ASSET ACCOUNT GROUP SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY JUNE 30, 1999 
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY Land Buildings Equipment Tota INSTRUCTION Kindergarten Elementary Middle High 

$ 61,760 $ 2,351,237 $ 787,962 $ 3,200,959 8,847,384 4,727,318 2,276,828 Total instruction 15,913,290 
SUPPORTING SERVICES: Administration 1,085,389 

102,011,181 70,745,564 60,687,740 235,795,722 
6.936.547 

16,442,692 7,878,012 9,326,097 34,434,763 
6,360,385 

127,301,257 83,350,894 72,290,665 286.143,775 
14.382.321 

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $16,998,679 $242,732,269 $40,795,148 $300,526,096 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SCHEDULE B-13 
GENERAl. FIXED ASSET ACCOUNT GROUP SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY INSTRUCTION Kindergarten Elemenlary Middle ttigh 

Balance July 1, 1998 Additions 
2,915,742 122,089,012 80,172,214 70,117,678 Total instruction 275,294,646 

SUt'PORTING SERVICES: Administration 13,862,523 

$ 340,975 6,593,990 3,492,550 3,107,277 13,534,792 
1,556,263 

Balance Deletions June 30, 1999 
55.758 1,381,745 313,870 934,290 2,685,663 
1,036,465 

$ 3,200,959 127,301,257 83,350,894 72,290,665 286,143,775 
14,382,321 

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $289,157,169 $15,091,055 $3,722,128 $300,526,096 
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OTItER SUPPLEMENTAl, INFORMATION The schedules within this subsection are presented as supplementary information to expand upon the data presented in the other subsections of the Financial Section. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF' INVESTMENTS -ALL FUNDS JUNE 30, 1999 

SCHEDULE BS-1 

Description U.S. Government securities: U.S. Treasury Bill U.S. Treasury Note U.S. Treasury Note Series E - 2000 U.S. Treasury Bill U.S. Treasury Note Series AJ - 1999 U.S. Treasury Bill U.S. Treasury Coupon U.S. Treasury Bill U.S. Treasury Note U.S. Treasury Note Series AJ - 1999 U.S. Treasmy Bill U.S. Treasury Note Series H - 2000 U.S. Treasury Note Series S - 2000 U.S. Treasury Note Series R - 2000 
TOTAL 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS: 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS Capital 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax 
TOTAL 
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Date Acquired 
6/30/99 5/11/9 6/28/99 6/30/99 6/28/99 6/24/99 9/23/99 4/22/99 4/22/99 6/28/99 6/28/99 4/23/99 4/22/99 6/28/99 

Interest Rate 
N/A 5.875 6.375 N/A 5.875 N/A N/A N/A 5.875 5.875 5.750 6.000 7.125 6.875 

Maturity Date 
7/29/99 7/31/99 1/15/00 8/26/99 8/31/99 1/6/00 8/t5/99 9/16/99 7/31/99 8/31/99 9/30/99 10/15/99 9/30/99 8/31/99 

Carrying Value 
$ 3,000,204 3,076,313 4,700,896 3,000,156 4,010,352 15,661,444 124,212 5,443,986 5,440,128 3,999,829 4,498,638 5,087,571 5,039,995 5,499,574 $ 68,583,298 
Fund Allocation 
$ 6,076,517 15,661,444 3,000,156 4,825,109 29,563,226 
29,510,145 9,509,927 39.020.072 
$68,583,298 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING AND COMPONENT UNIT TRANSFERS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1999 

SCHEDULE BS-2 Page 1 of 2 

GENERAL FUND 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title 1) Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title 111) Individuals with Disabilities Education Act of 1990 - Part B Job Training Partnership Act Drug Free Schools and Coummnitics Title XIX School Nurse Child Care and Development Block Grant Aduh Education State Programs 

Transfers To or From 
Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title I) Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title I10 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act of 1990 - Part B Job Training Partnership Act Drug Free Schools and Communities Title X1X School Nurse Child Care and Development Block Grant Adult Education State Programs Ad Valorem Tax Bond Sinking Capital Fund School Lunch Enterprise Fund 

General Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund Total 
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Operating Transfers In Operating Transfers Out 
80 $ 894 53 215 2,544 85 
204.487 
382.044 

610 30 22,811 421,840 3,023,000 1,597,722 5,069,804 
894 80 53 215 2,544 85 177,477 610 30 22,811 204,487 27,242 382.044 
Continued) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING AND COMPONENT UNIT TRANSFERS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1999 

SCHEDULE BS-2 Page 2 of 2 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS Ad Valorem Tax Bond Sinking 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 
1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 

Transfers To or From 
General Fund 
1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve Sales Tax Fund 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Shlking Sales Tax Fund 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve Sales Tax Fund 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS Capital Fund Sales Tax Fund 
SCI]OOL LUNCH ENTERPRISE FUND 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT/COMPONENT UNIT TRANSFERS 

General Fund 1954 I/2g Sales Tax Bond Sinking 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
General Fund Total 

Operating Transfers In 
421.840 
Operating Transfers Out 
698,930 51,000 698,930 5,555,220 730,764 689,355 1.653.499 

9,018,844 
3.023.000 51,000 730,764 691,599 4,496,363 
1,597,722 1,597,722 TOTAL OPEILA.TING TRANSFERS $15,522,215 

GENERAL FUND/PRIMARY GOVERNMENT Component Unit COMPONENT UNIT The Jefferson Conmmnity Charter School General Fund 
Transfers In 
$ 450,000 

691,599 689,355 2,861,648 

5,555,220 1,653,499 7,208,719 

$15,522,215 Transfers Out $ 450,000 
TOTAL COMPONENT UNIT TRANSFERS $ 450,000 $ 450,000 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SCHEDULE BS-3 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID TO SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 
Board Member Karen Barnes Barry Bordelon Cedric Floyd O. 11. Guidry Gene Katsanis Martin B. Marino Libby Moran Laurie Rolling Hagan 
Ray St. Pierre Dr. Polly Thomas Robert Wolfe 
TOTAL 

Number of Days Served 181 365 184 184 365 365 365 365 181 18] 365 184 
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Compensation $ 5,600 10,300 4,000 4,000 9,600 9,600 10,100 9,600 5,600 5,600 9,600 4,000 $ 87,600 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SCHEDULE C 
YEAR 2000 INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 (AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 
The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and other electronic equipment that may adversely affect the government's operations as early as the fiscal year 1999 The School System has completed an inventory of its computer systems that may be affected by the year 2000 issue and that are necessary to conducting School System operations. The School System identified several systems that required upgrading as described below. Disclosure of significant amount of resources committed-contracted to address year 2000 issues for computer systems Jefferson Parish Public School System has spent approximately $532,000 during the 1998-99 school year (July 1, 1998 through June 30, 1999) to assess, remediate, validate, and test all mission-critical financial and personnel systems residing on the mainframe. Additionally, the School System has not committed any significant resources subsequent to June 30, 1999 as it related to the year 2000. 
General description of year 2000 issue relative to work in process Jefferson Parish Public Schools is in the Validation/Testing Stage as defined by GASB TB 98-1 in that changes have been made to mainframe systems (including software) and equipment. All critical mainframe systems dealing with financial and personnel issues have been converted. We anticipate completion of validation and testing of these financial and personnel systems no later than October 30, 1999; however, the completion of these stages is not a guarantee that systems and equipment will be year 2000 compliant. Because of the uncertainty of the year 2000 issues, the process of assessing, remediating, testing and validating will continue through the end of the year 2000. It is critical that the School System continue to monitor and respond to issues that may surface from now to January 1, 2001. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Fisca Year 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 

Total Tax Levy Current Tax Collections (1) $20,063,862 $19,101,125 19,428,288 17,921,491 15,198,544 14,724,330 17,475,550 16,596,850 16,596,138 15,576,482 16,980,867 15,876,457 18,524,536 17,284,619 19,089,340 17,849,204 20,795,797 19,522,926 21,463,437 19,935,225 

Percent of Tax Collected 95.20 92.24 96.88 94.97 93.86 93.50 93.31 93.50 93.88 92.88 
NOTES: (1) The Jefferson Parish SherifPs Office is the eonecting agent for the School System (2) Includes interest and penalty collections and other judgments (3) Includes uncollected from the current year net of adjustments. Source: Jefferson Parish Sherift's Office, Property Tax Reconciliation Report. 
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Prior Year Delinquent Tax Collections(2) $606,599 753,298 811,417 635,627 696,202 515,579 393,314 502,384 280,008 218,804 



TABLE 3 

Total Cash Collections (2) $19,707,724 18,674,789 15,535,747 17,232,477 16,272,684 16,392,086 17,677,933 18,351,588 19,802,934 20.154.029 

Percent of Total Collections to Tax Levy 98.22 96.12 102.22 98.61 98.05 96.53 95.43 96.14 95.23 93.90 

Outstanding Delinquent Taxes (3) $ 668,127 823,853 511,366 664.738 405,240 381,791 
361,151 336,837 311,569 
495,587 
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Percent of Delinquent Taxes to Tax Levy 3.33 4.24 3.36 3.80 2.44 2.25 
1.95 1.76 1.50 2.31 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM ASSESSED TAXABLE VALUE BY TYPE OF PROPERTY LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1) 
Fisca Year ]990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 

Real Estate sse $1,478,811,052 1,410,410,590 1,398,391,467 1,414,993,100 1,402,928,000 1,440,022,891 1,564,855,075 1,595,029,436 1,631,708,266 1,684,119,181 

Personal Property Assessed $296,755,383 308,355,889 314,981,901 322,595,835 328,634,000 364,135,874 438,154,011 472,388,103 493,452,914 519,893,233 

Public Service Corporations Assessea $ 137,260,870 144,279,030 150,233,440 147,831,850 150,954,000 171,358,058 154,277,510 149,245,410 145,438,910 147,724,350 
(1) The assessed and taxable value for the School System is determined during the School System's fiscal year and is supplied by the Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office. All land and residential improvements are assessed at 10% of its fair market value and other property at 15% of its market value. Taxable valuation for tax levy purposes is net of adjustments identified subsequent to certification. Source: Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, Grand recapitulation of the assessment to] 

- 76- 



TABLE 4 

Total Homestead sse Exempt Taxable Value $1,912,827,305 100 $655,693,498 $1,257,133,807 1,863,045,509 100 634,148,992 1,228,896,517 1,863,606,808 100 637,170,252 1,226,436,556 1,885,420,785 100 642,492,250 1,882,516,000 100 648,005,000 1,975,516,823 2,157,286,596 2,216,662,949 2,270,600,090 2,351,736,764 

100 100 100 100 100 

1,242,928,535 1,234,511,000 653,914,820 1,321,602,003 700,028,120 1,457,258,476 704,683,990 1,511,978,959 709,415,760 1,561,184,330 717,916,540 1,633,820,224 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
PROPERTY TAX RATES - ALL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS (PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE) LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

TABLE 5 

Fisca Year 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 

Jefferson Parish Public School System ~alntenance and Operation 0.66 0.83 0.58 0.68 0.65 0.66 0.69 0.62 0.73 0.957 

Debt Service 0.39 0.21 0.24 0.25 0.24 0.29 0.31 0.27 0.30 0.003 

Jefferson Total Parish 1.05 1.04 0.82 0.93 0.89 0.95 1.00 0.89 1.03 0.96 
Source: JeffcrsonParish, Louisiana December 31, 1998CAFR 
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1.51 1.21 1.34 1.38 1.43 1.39 1.40 1.26 1.31 1.30 

Parish Other 0.41 0.47 0.65 0.65 0.64 0.65 0.65 0.66 0.69 0.68 

Tota 2.97 2.72 2.81 2.96 2.96 2.99 3.05 2.81 3.03 2.94 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
RATIO OF NE:T GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Debt Service Ratio of Net Fiscal Gross Bonded Monies Net Bonded Bonded Debt to Year Assessed Value Debt (2) Available (2) Debt Assessed Value (In Thousands) 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 

$1,912,827 $36,788,000 $4,127,131 $32,660,869 1,863,046 32,785,000 5,499,954 27,285,046 1,863,607 28,575,000 2,918,031 25,656,969 1,885,421 1,882,516 24,158,000 1,949,753 22,208,247 19,925,000 1,975,517 15,500,000 2,157,287 11,275,000 2,216,663 6,795,000 
855,950 19,069,050 15,500,000 195,948 770,402 11,079,052 6,024,598 2,270,600 2,840,000 2,287,773 552,227 2,351,737 22,050,000 138,807 21,911,193 

(1) Estimates based on data from Louisiana Teeh University, obtained from Jefferson Parish, Louisiana December 31.1998 CAFR. (2) Includes only Ad Valorem Tax Bonds. 
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1.71% 1.46 % 1.38 % 1.18 % 1.01% 0.78 % 0.51% 0.27 % 0.00 % 0.93 % 



TABLE 6 

Parish Population (1) 
465,624 448,306 451,543 456,389 457.069 457,481 458,456 455,741 453,160 453.165 

Net Bonded Debt Per Capita 
$ 70 61 57 49 42 34 24 13 1 48 

Assessed Valuation Per Capita 
$4,108 4,156 4,127 4,131 4,119 4,318 4,706 4,864 5,011 5,190 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN JUNE 30, 1999 

TABLE 7 

1999 total appraised valuation for school tax purposes (1) Debt limit percentage 
Legal debt limit Total bonded debt Less (plus) - Reserve (deficit) for retirement of bonded debt Net bonded debt applicable to debt limit Legal debt margin 
NOTE 

$22,050,000 
138.807 

(1) The 1999 tax year appraised value is used for fiscal year 1999 tax purposes. 

-81 - 

$2,351,736,764 10 % 235,173,676 

21,911,193 $ 213,262,483 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT (1) JUNE 30, 1999 
TABLE 8 

Jefferson Parish Public Schoo System Jefferson Parish West Jefferson Levee District City of Kenner Total direct and overlapping debt 
Taxable assessed valuation Ratio of direct and overlapping debt to taxable assessed valuation Direct and overlapping debt per capita 

Percentage Net Applicable to Bonded Debt the System 
$21,911,193 73,645,000 ],269,000 1,595,000 $ 98,420,193 

100 
100 lO0 100 

(1) Data for taxing entities other than Jefferson Parish Public School System were supplied by the respective taxing entity. 
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System Share of Debt 
$ 21,911,193 73,645,000 1,269,000 1,595,000 $ 98.420.193 
$1,633,820,224 
6.02 % 
217 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT (2) TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

TABLE 9 

Fisca Year 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 

Interest and Fiscal Principal (2) Charges (2) 
Ratio of Total Debt Service Total Debt General to General Service Expenditures (1) Expenditures $3,812,000 $2,106,939 $5,918,939 $243,655,503 4,003,000 1,910,005 5,913,005 249,961,641 4,210,000 1,705,907 5,915,907 258,652,164 4,417,000 1,493,974 5,910,974 264,549,683 4,233,000 1,271,392 5,504,392 284,749,912 4,425,000 1,050,699 5,475,699 375,919,095 4,225,000 823,865 5,048,865 302,225,713 4,480,000 590,480 5,070,480 308,424,857 3,955,000 2.790.000 349,650 129,300 

NOTE: (1) Per Table 1. (2) Includes only Ad Valorem Tax Bonds 

4,304,650 343,641,631 2,919,300 352,042,977 
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2.4 % 2.4 % 2.3 % 2.2 % 1.9 % 1.5 % 1.7 % 1.6 % 1.3 % 0.8% 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

TABLE 10 

Fisca Year 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 
NOTES 

Parish Population (1) 465,624 448,306 451,543 456,389 457,069 457,481 458,456 455,741 453,160 453,165 

Average Daily Membership (2) 56,591 57,971 55,593 55,241 54,638 55,023 52,008 52,024 52,032 52,274 

Average Daily Attendance (2) 52,482 53,682 50,701 49,042 53,489 52,984 48,960 48,960 49,128 46,639 
(1) Estimates based on data from Louisiana Tech University, obtained from Jefferson Parish. Louisiana December 31.1998 CAFR. (2) Source: State Annual Financial and Statistical Report 

- 84 - 

Percent of Attendance 92.7 92.6 91.2 88.8 97.9 96.3 94.1 94.1 94.4 89.2 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fisca Year 
1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 
1998 1999 

Assessed Property Value 
$1,912,827,305 1,863,045,509 1,863,606,808 1,885,420,785 1,882,516,000 1,975,516,823 2,157,286,596 2,216,662,949 
2,270,600,090 2,351,736,764 

Residential Construction Single Family Units Value 
487 409 521 593 600 600 556 494 
492 597 

$27,647,498 24,723,976 31,427,031 34,763,428 35,803,000 39,128,000 35,644,000 32,575,000 
30,847,000 49,594,000 

Multi Family Units Value 
30 1 0 13 160 23 348 211 24 
9 

$12,902,653 10,440,516 0 755,284 5,175,000 

(1) Amount was unavailable at December 31, 1998 due to the impact of a major bank merger Source: Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office, Finance Department, and Department of Inspection and Code Enforcement. 
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9,080,000 8,719,000 7,206,000 
887,000 1,743,000 



TABLE 11 

Commercial Public Buildings and Other Construction Value Total Permit Valuation Jefferson Parish Bank Deposits 
$ 91,729,239 $132,279,390 $1,803,591,000 89,102,698 124,267,190 2,192,567,000 109,030,212 140,457,243 2,501,285,614 68,586,076 92,330,000 104,104,788 2,692,906,803 133,308,000 2,936,122,000 118,262,000 166,470,000 3,316,570,000 150,432,000 194,795,000 3,917,592,000 118,833,000 158,614,000 3,925,036,000 106,391,000 138,125,000 4,270,500,000 157,023,000 208,360,000 (1) 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 

TABLE 12 

Name of Taxpayer Entergy Services Inc. BellSou~h Hibernia National Bank Avondale Shipyards, Inc Louisiana Gas Service First National Bank of Commerce Lakeside Shopping Center Whitney National Bank Louisiana CGSA Inc. Southwest Airlines Co 

Type of Business Electric Utility Telephone Utility Financial Institution Shipbuilding Gas Utility Financial Institution Shopping Mall Financial Institution Tcleconmmnications Airline 
Source: Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office 
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1998 Assessed Percent of Valuation Total (Amounts in Assessed thousands) Valuation $ 56,779 45,149 15,254 14,092 12,778 12,629 
11,389 10,440 8,321 7.443 $194,274 

2.42% 1.92 .65 .60 .54 .54 .48 .44 .35 .32 8.26% 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION TABLE 13 
COMPARATIVE AVERAGE COST PER PUPIL: 
Year 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 

Total Expenditures(I) $243,655,503 249,961,641 258,652,164 264,549,683 284,749,912 305,844,095 (2) 302,225,713 308,424,857 343,641,631 352,042,977 

Dally Membership 56,591 57,971 55,593 55,241 54,638 55,023 52,008 52,024 52,032 52,274 

Cost Per Pup $4,306 4,312 4,199 4,789 5,212 5,558 5,811 5,929 6,604 6.735 (1) Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects. (2) Does not include $70,075,000 debt retired during fiscal 1995 on a refinancing which originated during fiscal 1992. 
STATISTICAL INFORMATION BASED ON AVERAGE DALLY MEMBERSHIP 
Average daily membership State and federal funds Local funds received Tax levied Outstanding bonds 

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 
52,274 $ 3,289 3,200 411 3.356 

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS Schools: Senior 11igh Schools Junior High Schools Middle Schools Elementary Kindergarlen Special Career Center 
Staff: Total employees Teachers 

52,032 $ 3,087 3,135 399 3,211 
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52,024 $ 2,891 3,019 370 3,214 
52,008 $ 2,885 3,151 356 3.480 
9 5 11 52 3 3 1 84 
7,767 3,992 

55,023 $ 2,690 2,941 298 2.514 
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Deloit/e & Touche LLP Rebowe & Company APC Hanford M. Harrison, CPA 701 Poydras Street Suite 3700 New Orleans, Louisiana 70139 (504) 581-2727 
3501 N. Causeway Boulevard Suite 810 Metairie, Louisiana 70002 (504) 837-0123 

1027 Whitney Avenue Gretna, Louisiana 70056 (504) 36s-2sol 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED UPON THE AUDIT PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
Members of the School Board of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Jefferson Parish Public School System, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated October 15, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroner General of the United States. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Jefferson Parish Public School System's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests diselosed one instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards as follows: Collateralization of Deposits Per LSA-RS 39:1225, depository institutions are required to pledge securities to collateralize deposits of all governmental entities. The statute states that "the amount of the security should at all times be equal to 100% of the amount on deposit to the credit of each depositing authority, except that portion of the deposits insured by any governmental agency insuring bank deposits, which is organized under the laws of the United States." We noted an $ l 8 million temporary deficiency of securities pledged to the School System as collatera at June 30, 1999 for deposits on hand at one of the School System's fiscal agent financial institutions. The financial institution admitted that the omission was its fault and represented that corrective action was taken upon its discovery after June 30, 1999. The School System should enhance its existing monitoring procedures to insure the adequacy of pledged securities relating to amounts on deposit. Internal Control Over Financial Rennrlinc, 



necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the finance committee, management, federal awarding agencies, state funding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
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REBOWE & COMPANY CEI{TIFIEI) PUBLIC ACCOLJNTANJS CONSULIAN'I S A F'ROr r SSIC)NAL COHPOFIAI ION 3501 N. Causeway Blvd. , Suite 010 ~ P.O. Box 6952 , Metairie, I.A 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (604) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITI! OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
Members of the School Board Jefferson l~arish, l,ouisiana We have audited the compliance of Jefferson Parish Publie School System's wilh lhe types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Coml)liance ~'ul)ldement/hat are applicable to each of Jls major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1999. Jefferson Parish Public School System's major fcderal programs arc identified in lhe accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. Compliance witb the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major fcdcral programs is the responsibility of Jefferson Parish Public Sehool System's managemeul. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Jefferson Parish Public School System's compliance based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted audiling standards; the slandards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Untied Stales; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of A'tates, Local Governments, and Non-]'rofit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether uoncompliancc wilh the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a lest basis, evidence about Jefferson Parish Public School System's compliance with those rcquiremcnls and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circmnstances. We believe thai our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal delermination on Jefferson Parish Public School System's compliance with flmse requircmenls. 
In our opinion, Jefferson Parish Public School System complied, in all material respccts, with the requirements referred to above that arc applicable to each of its major fcderal programs tbr the year ended June 30, 1999. 



Internal Control Over Compliance 
The management of Jefferson Parish Public School System is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Jefferson Parish Public School System's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the iutemal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of Jefferson Parish School System as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999 and have issued our report thereon dated October 15, 1999. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general-propose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general- purpose financial statements taken as a whole. This report is intended for the information of the Jefferson Parish Public School System's management, the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies and pass- through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these speci fled parties. 
October 15, 1999 
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JEFFERSON I'ARISII PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM FOOTNOTES TO ]'lie SCHEDULE OF EXPENI)ITURES OF FEDERAl, AWARDS For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Thc accompanying Schcdule of Expendilures of Federal Awards has been prepared on lhe accrual basis of accounting. Grant revenues are recorded for financial reporting purposes when lhe School Board has met tl~e qt~alifications for the respective grants. Several progranrs are funded jointly by Slate of Louisiana approprialions and federal funds. Cost incurred in programs partially funded by federal grants arc applicable against federal grant funds to the extent of revenue available whcn they properly apply to file grant. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with lhe requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts arc presented in, or used in the preparation of, the gcneral-purposc financial statements. 
Accrued and l)cfcrrcd Reimbursemen! Various reimbursement procedures arc used for federal awards received by the School System. Consequently, tinting differences between expenditures and program reimbursements can exist at the beginning and end of the year. Accrued balances at year-end represented an cxcess of reimbursable expenditures over cash reimbursements received. Generally, accrucd balances caused by diflbrences in the tinting of cash reimbursements and expenditures will be reversed in the remaining grant period. 



 

JEFFERSON PAIOSH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS AND STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the general-purpose fiuancial statements of the Jefferson Parish Public School System. 
2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements of Jefferson l'arish Public School system were noted during the audit. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Jefferson Parish l'ublic School Syslem were noted during the audit. 4. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the major federal award programs is reported in the Independent Auditor ~' Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Meg'or Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Jefferson Parish Public School System expresses an unqualified opinion. 6. No audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for Jefferson Parish Public School System, accordingly there is no Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosl. 7. The programs tested as m~ior programs include 
A. National School lmnch Program B. National School Breakfast Program C. Safe and [)rug Free Schools I). l Can 1,earn 

CFDA No. 
10.555 10.553 84.186 84.303 8. The threshold for distinguishing between type A and type B programs was $1,326,374 

9. Jefferson Parish Public School System was determined to be a low-risk auditec STATIJS OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS l'hcre werc no findings related to federal awards for the year ended June 30, 1998 SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST 
The School System had no findings or questioned cost requiring disclosure for June 30, 1999 



Deloil~e & Touche LLP Rebowe & Company APC Hanford M. Harrison, CPA 
701 Poydras Street Suite 3704) New Orleans, Louisiana 70139 (504) 581-2727 
October 15, 1999 

3501 N. Causeway Boulevard Suite 810 Metairie, Louisiana 70002 (504) 837-0123 

Jefferson Parish School Board 4600 River Road Marrero. Louisiana 70072 Dear Members of the Board 
Ftl i~ C.')r',,' 
o~@..-~ (;u : i+.i, ~['i{ m ~! ) 

1027 Whil,~~ ~,~T~IV ~ -AUmT OR Gretna, Lo~;~O~)~6 ~MII" 38 

'~i" O;i(.!, W~i!:it': ~:: :'" )i([(:~~. C'( th::~ ;:Z' [::~ :;i: r>. :' I ~-~ ;:: ~.:,~ t [.);~ [e The approach of the year 2000 presents significant issues for many financial, information, and operational systems. Many systems in use today may not be able to interpret dates after December 31, 1999 appropriately, because such systems allow only two digits to indicate the year in a date. As a result, such systems are unable to distinguish January 1, 2000, from January 1, 1900, which could have adverse consequences on the operations of the entity and the integrity of information processing, causing safety, operational, and financial issues. Our audit of Jefferson Parish Public School System's (School System's) financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1999, does not provide any assurances that the School System's systems or any other systems, such as those of the School System's vendors, service providers, customers, or other third parties, including the Department of Education, are year 2000 compliant, nor does our audit provide any assurances regarding the year 2000. In addition, we were not engaged to perform, nor did we perform, any procedures to test whether the School System's systems or any other systems are year 2000 compliant or whether the plans and activities of the School System are sufficient to address and correct system or any other problems that might arise because of the year 2000. Accordingly, we do not express any opinion or provide any other assurances regarding the year 2000. l lowever, during audit field work in the period ended October 15, 1999, we made limited inquiries abo~t the School Syslenr's activities to address the year 2000 issue. We have not performed any procedures to lest the accuracy or completeness of the responses to our inquiries, but we have noted that the School System has contracted an external company, Lockheed Martin, to provide year 2000 conversion services. Additionally, we have noted that the School System's management does have a year 2000 compliance committee lhat meets regularly to discuss the progress of the year 2000 conversion process. Because year 2000 activities are currently in process, we may have had additional observations had we made inquiries after the date of this letter. Accordingly, we encourage managemenl and the Board to continue their oversighl of the School System's year 2000 activities. This report is intended solely for the information &the School Board, management, the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and officials of applicable federal and stale agencies. This restriclion is not intended lo limit the distribution of this report, which is a malter of public record. 



ELTON M. LAGASSE 

ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 4600 RIVER ROAD MARRERO, LOUISIANA 70072 - 1943 (504) 349-7600 FAX (504) 349-7630 ! ( j 
December 15, 1999 

Mr. Daniel Kyle Louisiana State Legislative Auditor 1600 North Third Street Baton Rouge, Louisiaila 70804 Subject: Corrective Action l'lan for the Year Ending June 30, 1999 Dear Mr. Kyle: 

FRANK S. DAVIS CHIEF FLN ANCI~,L OFFLCE~I EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

In accordance with applicable audit policy the Jefferson Parish School Board herein submits it's Corrective Action Plan. The annual audit was conducted by: 
l)eloitlc & Touche 1.1.17 701 Poydras Street Suite 3700 New Orleans, Ira. 70139 (504) 581-2727 

Rebowe & Company APC 3501 N. Causeway Blvd Suite 810 Mctairie, La. 70002 (504) 837-0123 
Hanford M. Harrison, CPA 1027 Whitney Ave Gretna, Louisiana 70056 (504) 368-2501 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS - All prior year findiugs have been addressed or included as a current year finding. 
('URI/ENT YEAR FINI)INGS Single Audit Findings - There were no prior ycar single audit findings that needed to be addresscd 
(?ompliance Findings - Finding - We noted an $18 million temporary deficiency of securities pledged to the School Syslem as collateral at June 30, 1999 for deposits on hand at one of the School System's fiscal agent financial institutions. The financial institution admitted that the omission was its fault and represented that corrective action was taken upon its discovery after Juue 30, 1999. The School System should enhance its existing monitoring procedures to insm'e tim adequacy of pledged securities relating to amounts on deposit. Collateralization of Deposits - Per LSA-RS 39:1225, 
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depository institutions are required to pledge securities to collateralize deposits of all governmental entities, The statute stales that "The amount of the security should al all limes be equal to 100% of the amount on deposit to the credit of each depositing authority, except that portion of the deposits insured by any governmental agency insuring bank deposits, which is organized under the laws &the United States. 
Management's Response - The monthly verification process has been reviewed with the bank and School Sysleln's responsible accounting person. Further the School System is in the process of seeking Request for Proposals (RFI') for the banking agreement. The current agreement, in effecl for the past eight years will expire June 30, 2000. The issue ofcollaleralization is a major consideration of the RFP, Responsible Person, Mr. Joseph Rudolph, Chief, Finance & Accounting, (504) 349-7642. 
Manaecment Letter Comments 
1. Comment - Fixed Assets - Program Software. The School System's fixed asset accounting system does not adequately account for all assets in the General Fixed Asset Account Group ("GFAAG"). The School System continues to use its internally developed fixed asset accounting system which is not interfaced with the general ledger accounting system and, therefore, requires extensive reconciliation. We recommended in prior years that the School System replace the old fixed asset accounting system with a new accounting system that is compatible with its general ledger syslem and that it raise its capitalization tlareshold policy. In fiscal 1998, the School Syslem raised its capitalization tlareshold to $300 but did not upgrade its accounting system. We continue to believe that the fixed asset system needs to be upgraded to provide an appropriate interface with the general ledger system. 
Management's Response - The School System Adlninistration is aware of the limitations of the current fixed asset accounting system and has been planning to replace it as soon as possible. The reason tbr thc delay is thai the School System has devoted all of its time and attention to the Y2K situation which is nearly complete. The Jefferson Parish School Board is in tl~e process of sending out an P, FP for computer services and as a result has decided to address the fixed asset accounting system after the Board selects a computer vendor, qlle problem of the fixed asset accounting system will be presented to ll~e new vendor for recommendations for a cost effective solution. It is important to point out that all equipment purchase orders which are generated on the mainfranae are down loaded to the fixed asset accounting package. The inventory clerk verifies that all pieces of equipment purchased are tagged using this report. Responsible Person, Mr. Joseph Rudolph, Chief, Finance & Accounting, (504) 349-7642. 
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2. Comment - Year 2000 - Observation. In our letter dated October 15, 1999, we informed you that (1) we made limited inquiries of management regarding their activities to address the year 2000, (2) our audit of Jefferson Parish Public School System's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1999, does not provide any assurances nor did we express any opinion, that the School System's systems or any other systems, such as those of School System's vendors, service providers or other third parties are year 2000 compliant, and (3) we are not engaged to perform, nor did we perform as part of our audit engagement, any procedures to lest whether the School System's systems or any other systems are year 2000 compliant or whether the plans and activities of the School System or any other their parties are sufficient to address and correct system or any other problems that might arise because of the year 2000, nor will we express any opinion or provide any other assurances with regard to these matters. The School System should continue to diligently address the year 2000 problem. Management' Response - The Jefferson Parish School System continues to aggressively attack the Y2K situation. We have purchased new hardware which is being run parallel with our old system. This process is well underway and scheduled for completion by October 1999. The project is now completed as of December 1, 1999. The School System has also contracted with a sofhvarc company to lest all accounting, payroll and personnel programs for Y2K exposure. This work is almost complete and the company's testing should insure Y2K compatibility. We believe wc have the Y2K situation under control. Responsible Person, Dr. l,eigh Barton, Executive Director of Technology, (504) 349-8574. 3. Comment - Maintenance Department Controls. To assist the School System in testing the effectiveness of the revised internal control procedures implemented in November 1998, we selected 82 maintenance invoices to review. One of the key control procedures implemented in the revised policies is ,an increase of the cost thresholds requiring quotes/bids. There were approximately 200 Job Verification Fomls included in the maintenance invoices reviewed. The following summarizes the results of out tests of the invoices: One (1) of the 82 invoices reviewed did not have the correct hourly rate charged on the ,lob Vcrificatioll Fornl, resulting in an overpayment of $260. Seven (7) of the 82 invoices werc paid despite no signature by School System personnel on a "Job "Verification Form" upon leaving the site of work performed. ]'his was one of the key control procedures implemented in the revised policies adopted in May 1997. three (3) of the approximately 200 Job Verification Forms did not have all of the unused portions of the form lined out as required. One (1) of the 82 invoices did not have the required math check Of tl~e 82 maintenance invoices reviewed, we noted one(l) invoice where parts and 



Page 4 of 6 materials in excess of $50 were invoiced without adequate supporting documentation Additionally, oll one invoice we noted that parts had becn double billed. Total unsupported parts and materials invoiced was $115. 
Based upon our review, we observed some requirements of the policy and procedures manual that may need further clarification to improve compliance and consistency among maintenance contract invoice processing. Specifically noted under the cun'ent review were those procedures related to a normal work day and requirement for documenting lunch breaks. 3'he Maintenance Department personnel should continue to review the .lob Verification Forms and vendor invoices Additionally, the School System administration should attempt to clarify areas identified as problematic in order to reduce the instances of non-compliance with School System policies by personnel entrusted to implement thosc policies and procedures. 
Management's Response - All areas requiring clarification as pointed out in the audit will be addressed in the next update of the policy manual. The School System is committed to continuing its close supervision and oversight of the service contract process. Responsible Person, Mr. Guy Baldassaro, Coordinator of Maiutcnanee, (504) 349-7715. 4. Comment - Community l'rograms - Observation. In fiscal year 2001, the prograln accountant, the fund accountant and the program director for Community Progralns all will be eligible for retirelnent. There are no lists or written sulmnaries oflhe functions these personnel perform in order to ascertain proper record-keeping. The loss of the three key personncl who ovcrsee the operations of the COlmnunity programs in the same year would be a hardship on the School System replacement personnel without a flmrough understanding of the intricacies of the programs. School System personnel should prepare or cause to have prepared procedures for operating/naonitoring the financial activities of these programs to facilitate transition responsibilities. Management's Response - The School System has a policy manual outlining all phases of the conmmuity education program. 1 lowever, particular attention will be paid to the personnel changeover situation to facilitate personnel transition and mission accmnplishment. Responsible l'crson, Mr. Sal 1,aP, ock, Director, Connnunity Education, (504) 736-1850. 5. Comment - Community Edncation Policy Manuals - Observation. The Comnmnity Education program site directors lmve been issued a policy manual that outlines requircd reports to be prepared ~,o recap the financial activity of the various programs. School System personnel arc not provided with easily auditable information from all participating schools as required by the policies despite frequent requests from internal auditors of the various programs, lfall site directors enforced all policies related to requested record-keeping issues, a more accurate, 



l'age 5 of 6 auditable history of the program financial activities (i.e., cash collections) would be achieved. Site direc(ors should lake steps lo ascertain that all requircd information is prepared timely by competeul persons in their charge. Managemenl's Response - The Director of Community Education will become more active ira the process to insure that all vital information is collecled and reports are prepared timely. l').esponsible Person, Mr. Sal 1,aRock, Director, Communily Education, (504) 736-1850. 6. Conmlent- Studcnt Activity Accounts - Observation. During our testing of the Student Activily accounts relating to the internal audits conducted by School System personnel, we reviewed guidance on lhe matter published by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor. 1l appears thai there are areas where current School System procedures could be enhanced such as documenlation, supervision and record retention, lulerual audits of school activity accounts are being conducted but documeutation of procedures performed by audit personnel vary. Efforts should be undertaken 1(1 standardization lhe scope of testing, doeumenlation and reporting of sludenl activity fund audits. Periodic Wol'kshops should be conducted to promote standardization and to update personnel on emerging issues or new regulations affecling such accounls. 
Managcmcnl's Response - The Administration believes that while the documentation may no( ira all cases be slandard, it nevertheless provides sufficient documentation as well as audit trails for further study and analysis. However, the School System accepts the external auditors recommendation and will conduct semi-annual training classes for all personnel involved in the audit of student activity accounts. These classes, lo be conducted by our external auditors, will focus on all areas with particular attention paid to lesling, documenlalion and reporting. l(esponsible Person, Mr. Joseph Rudolph, Chief, Finance & Accounting, (504) 349-7642. 
7. Comment - GASB Statement No. 34 - Observation. In June 1999, lhe Government Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") issued GASB Statement No. 34, "basic Financial Stalements" effeclive for fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. GASB Statement No. 34 establishes new financial reporting requiremenls for both state and local goveruments. When implemented, it will creale new financial information and will restructure much of the financial information (hat governments have presented in the past. GASB Stalement No. 34 was developed 1o make annual reporls more comprehensive and easier for (he reader to understand. GASB Stalement No. 34 requires that the School System significantly change the way it reports its financial data. The most significaul changes will be (hat the School System will report financial information for all governmental fund type accouuling utilizing the full accrual method of accounting as opposed to the modified accrual melhod currently used. The School System will be required to record and depreciate all capi(al asscts, and to eliminate both the General Fixed Asset Accounl Group ("GFAAG") and the General Long-Term Debt Account Group ("GLTDAG"). The School System will present dual financial statements with presentatiora of both "Government-wide Financial Statements" and lhe (raditional "Fund Financial Statements." The School System will eliminate all interfund transactions, including interfund loans, interfund services provided and 
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used, and interfund transfers. Although the full effect of GASB Statement No. 34 will not be known until its implemenlalion, lhe effects of these changes could cause funds cun'enlly in a suq~lus position to report deficit fund balances. In addition, inlplemcnlation of GASB Slatemeqt No. 34 will require additional man-hours to pertbrm. The School System should become familiar wilh this slatemenl and develop a task force to identify reporting issues that may prove particularly troublesome. Manavcment's Resoo Jse - The School System will begin lo implement GARB No. 34 for the Responsible Person, Mr. Joseph Rudolph, Chief, Finance & Accounliqg required effective dale (504) 349-7642. 

Chief Financial Officer 



Deloitte & Touche LLP Rebowe & Company APC Hanford M_. Har~'j,son, CPA 701 Poydras Street Suite 3700 New Orleans, Louisiana 70139 (504) 581-2727 
October 15. 1999 

3501 N. Causeway Boulevard Suite 810 Metairie, Louisiana 70002 (504) 837-0123 
Jefferson Parish School Board 4600 River Road Marrero. Louisiana 70072 Dear Members of the Board 

,. Le GI~C~-~E~ -AUDitOR J 027 wnrcney ~ venue Gretna, ' ' (504) 
OFi'tC~.~l 
DO b'.(;'~" .~:~ .5,; ~_ 'J'(' 

In planning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the Jefferson Parish Public School System (School System) for the year ended June 30, 1999 (on which we have issued our report dated October 15, 1999), we developed the following recommendations concerning certain matters related to the School System's internal control and certain observations and recommendations on other accounting, administrative and operating matters. A description of the responsibility of management for establishing and maintaining internal control, and of the objectives of and inherent limitations of internal control, is set fort~ in the attached Appendix, and should be read in conjunction with this letter. Our comments are presefited in Exhibit 1 and are listed in the table of contents thereto. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the School Board, management, the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and officials of applicable federal and Slate agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
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ACCOUNTING. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING MATTERS 
FIXED ASSETS Program Software Observation The School System's fixed asset accounting system does not adequately account for all assets in the Genera Fixed Asset Account Group ("GFAAG"). Background_ The School Syslem continues to use its internally developed fixed asset accounting system which is not interfaced with the general ledger accounting system and, therefore, requires extensive reconciliation. Recommendation We recommended in prior years that the School System replace the old fixed assel accounting system with a new accounting system that is compatible with its general ledger system and that it raise its capitalization threshold policy. In fiscal 1998, the School System raised its capitalization threshold to $300 but did not upgrade its accounting system. We continue to believe that the fixed asset system needs to be upgraded to provide an appropriate interface with the general ledger system. Manaffement's Resnonse The School System Administration is aware of the limitations of the current fixed asset accounting system and has been planning to replace it as soon as possible. The reason for the delay is that the School System has devoted all of its time and attention to the Y2K situation which is nearly complete. The Jefferson Parish School Board is in the process of sending out an RFP for computer services and as a result has decided to address the fixed asset accounting system after the Board selects a computer vendor. The problem of the fixed asset accounting system will be presented to the new vendor for recommendations for a cost effective solution. It is important to point out that all equipment purchase orders which are generated on the mainframe are downloaded to the fixed asset accounting package. The inventory clerk verifies that all pieces of equipment purchased are tagged using this report. YEAR 2000 Observation In our letter to you dated October 15, 1999, we informed you that (1) we made limited inquiries of management regarding their activities to address the year 2000, (2) our audit of Jefferson Parish Public School System's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1999, does not provide any assurances nor did we express any opinion, that the School System's systems or any other systems, such as those of School System's vendors, service providers or other third parties are year 2000 compliant, and (3) we are not engaged to perform, nor did we perform as part of our audit engagement, any procedures to test whether the School System's systems or any other systems are year 2000 compliant or whether the plans and activities of the School System or any other third parties are sufficient to address and correct system or any other problems that might arise because of the year 2000, nor will we express any opinion or provide any other assurances with regard to these matters. 



The School System should continue to diligently address the year 2000 problem Mana~ement's Resoonge The Jefferson Parish School System continues to aggressively attack the Y2K situation. We have purchased new hardware which is being run parallel with our old system. This process is well underway and scheduled for completion by October 1999. The School System has also contracted with a software company to test all accounting, payroll and personnel programs for Y2K exposure. This work is almost complete and the company's testing should insure Y2K compatibility. We believe we have the Y2K situation under control. 
MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT CONTROLS To assist the School System in testing the effectiveness of the revised internal control procedures implemented in November 1998, we selected 82 maintenance invoices to test. One of the key control procedures implemented in the revised policies is an increase of the cost thresholds requiring quotes/bids There were approximately 200 Job Verification Forms included in the maintenance invoices tested. The following summarizes the results of our tests of the invoices: ~ One (1) of the 82 invoices reviewed did not have the correct hourly rate charged on the Job Verification Forna, resulting in an overpayment of $260. Seven (7) of the 82 invoices were paid despite no signature by School System personnel on a "Job Verification Form" upon leaving the site of work performed. This was one of the key control procedures implemented in the revised policies adopted in May 1997. ~ Three (3) of the approximately 200 Job Verification Forms did not have all of the unused portions of the form lined out as required. ~ One (1) of the 82 invoices did not have the required math check Of the 82 maintenance invoices tested, we noted one (1) invoice where parts and materials in excess of $50 were invoiced without adequate supporting documentation. Additionally, on one invoice we noted parts that had been double billed. Total unsupported parts and materials invoiced was $115. Based upon our testing, we observed some requirements of the policy and procedures manual that may need further clarification to improve compliance and consistency among maintenance contract invoice processing Specifically noted under the current testing were those procedures related to a normal work day and the requirement for documenting lunch breaks. Recommendation The Maintenance Department personnel should continue to review the Job Verification Forms and vendor invoices. Additionally, the School System administration should attempt to clarify areas identified as problematic in order to reduce the instances of non-compliance with School System policies by personnel entrusted to implement those policies and procedures. 

-2- 



Mana~ement's Resl)onse All areas requiring clarification as pointed out in the audit will be addressed in the next update of the policy manual. The School System is committed to continuing its close supervision and oversight of the service contract process. COMMUNITY PROGRAMS Observation In fiscal year 2001, the program accountant, the fund accountant and the program director for Community Programs all will be eligible for retirement. There are no lists or written summaries of the functions these personnel perform in order to ascertain proper record-keeping. Background The loss of the three key personnel who oversee the operations of the community programs in the same year would be a hardship on the School System replacement personnel without a thorough understanding of the intricacies of the programs. Recommendation School System personnel should prepare or cause to have prepared procedures for operating/monitoring the financial activities of these programs to facilitate transitioning responsibilities. Mana~'ement's Resnonse The School System has a policy manual outlining all phases of the community education program, llowever particular attention will be paid to the personnel changeover situation to facilitate personnel transition and mission accomplishment. COMMUNITY EDUCATION POLICY MANUALS Observation The Community Education program site directors have been issued a policy manual that outlines required reports to be prepared to recap the financial activity of the various programs. School System personnel are not provided with easily auditable information from all participating schools as required by the policies despite frequent requests from internal auditors of the various programs. If all site directors enforced all policies related to requested record-keeping issues, a more accurate, auditable history of the program financial activities (i.e., cash collections) would be achieved. .Recommendation Site directors should take steps to ascertain that all required information is prepared timely by competent persons in their charge. 
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Mana~ement's Response The Director of Community Education will become more active in the process to insure that all vital information is collected and reports are prepared timely. STUDFNT ACTIVITY ACCOUNTS Observation During our testing of the Student Activity Accounts relating to the internal audits conducted by School System personnel, we reviewed guidance on the matter published by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor. It appears that there are areas where current School System procedures could be enhanced such as documentation, supervision and record retention. Background Internal audits of school activity accounts are being conducted, but documentation of procedures perfornled by audit personnel vary. Recommendation Efforts should be undertaken to standardize the scope of testing, documentation and reporting of student activity fund audits. Periodic workshops should be conducted to promote standardization and to update personnel on emerging issues or new regulations affecting such accounts. Mana~emenl's Resnonse The Administration believes that while the documentation may not in all cases be standard, it nevertheless provides sufficient documentation as well as audit trails for further study and analysis, tIowever, the School System accepts the external auditors' recommendation and will conduct semi-annual training classes for all personnel involved in the audit of Student Activity Accounts. These classes, to be conducted by our externa auditors, will focus on all areas with particular attention paid to testing, documentation and reporting. GASB S'FATEMENT NO. 34 Observation In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") issued GASB Statement No. 34, "Basic Financial Statements" effective for the School System's fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. GASB Statement No. 34 establishes new financial reporting requirements for both state and local governments. When implemented, it will create new financial information and will restructure much of the financial information that governments have presented in the past. GASB Statement No. 34 was developed to make annual reports more comprehensive and easier for the reader to understand. GASB Statement No. 34 requires that the School System significantly change the way it reports its financial data. The most significant changes will be that the School System will report financial information for all governmental fund type accounting utilizing the full accrual method of accounting as opposed to the modified accrual method currenlly used. The School System will be required to record and depreciate all capital assets, and to eliminate both the General Fixed Asset Account Group ("GFAAG") and the General Long-Tern1 Debt Account Group ("GLTDAG"). The School System will present dual financial statements with presentation of both "Government-wide Financial Statements" and the traditional "Fund Financial Statements." The School System will eliminate all interfund transactions, including interfund loans, interfund services provided and used, and interfund transfers. -4- 



Although the full effect of GASB Statement No. 34 will not be known until its implementation, the effects of these changes could cause funds currently in a surplus position to report deficit fund balances. In addition, implementation of GASB Statement No. 34 will require significant additional man-hours to perform. 
The School System should become familiar with this statement and develop a task force to identify reporting issues that may prove particularly troublesome. Mana~ement's Rest~onse The School System will begin to implement GASB No. 34 for the required effective date 
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APPENDIX 
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR, ANDTHE OBJECTIVES AND LIMITATIONS OF INTERNALCONTROL The following comments concerning managements responsibility for internal control and the objectives and inherent limitations of internal control are adapted from the Statements on Auditing Standards of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Manaeement's Resnonsibilitv Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control. In fulfilling this responsibility estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of controls. Objectives "/'he objectives of internal control are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Limitations Because of inherent limitations in an), internal control, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of internal control to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 


